Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022 at 7.00 pm

To:
Clir D.E. Clifford, Leader of the Council
Clir K.H. Muschamp, Deputy Leader and Customer Experience and Improvement
Portfolio Holder

Cllr Marina Munro, Planning and Economy Portfolio Holder
Clir A.R. Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder
Clir M.L. Sheehan, Operational Services Portfolio Holder
Clir P.G. Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder
Clir M.J. Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to Chris Todd, Democracy and
Community, on 01252 398825 or e-mail: chris.todd@rushmoor.gov.uk

AGENDA

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST —

Under the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors, all Members are required to
disclose relevant Interests in any matter to be considered at the meeting. Where the
matter directly relates to a Member's Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Registrable Interest, that Member must not participate in any discussion or vote on
the matter and must not remain in the room unless they have been granted a
dispensation (see note below). If the matter directly relates to ‘Non-Registrable
Interests’, the Member’s participation in the meeting will depend on the nature of the
matter and whether it directly relates or affects their financial interest or well-being or
that of a relative, friend or close associate, applying the tests set out in the Code.




NOTE:
On 27th May, 2021, the Council’s Corporate Governance, Audit and Standards
Committee granted dispensations to Members appointed by the Council to the Board
of the Rushmoor Development Partnership and as Directors of Rushmoor Homes
Limited.

MINUTES - (Pages 1 - 6)
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 8th February, 2022 (copy attached).

ADOPTION OF BASINGSTOKE CANAL AND MANOR PARK CONSERVATION
AREA CHARACTER APPRAISALS AND MANAGEMENT PLANS - (Pages 7 -
126)

(ClIr Marina Munro, Planning and Economy Portfolio Holder)

To consider Report No. EPSH2210 (copy attached), which seeks approval of the
Basingstoke Canal and Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appraisals and
Management Plans.

REGENERATING RUSHMOOR PROGRAMME - THE GALLERIES PROGRESS
UPDATE AND NEXT STEPS — (Pages 127 - 134)
(ClIr Martin Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder)

To consider Report No. REG2202 (copy attached), which sets out an update on The
Galleries regeneration scheme and seeks approval for the next steps.

REGENERATING RUSHMOOR PROGRAMME - FARNBOROUGH PROJECTS
FUNDING REQUIREMENT - (Pages 135 - 142)
(ClIr Martin Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder)

To consider Report No. REG2203 (copy attached), which sets out the funding
requirement to enable the progression of regeneration projects in Farnborough.

URGENT REPAIRS - PARTY WALL AT NOS. 35-39 HIGH STREET, ALDERSHOT
— (Pages 143 - 146)
(ClIr Martin Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder)

To receive an update on urgent works required to the party wall at Nos. 35-39 High
Street, Aldershot and to note a further Record of Executive Decision, which was
made following the receipt of final cost estimates (Report No. ED2201 and Record of
Executive Decision attached).



64.

65.

66.

AGENDA ITEM No. 2

CABINET

Meeting held on Tuesday, 8th February, 2022 at the Council Offices, Farnborough at
7.00 pm.

Voting Members
Clir D.E. Clifford, Leader of the Council
Clir K.H. Muschamp, Deputy Leader and Customer Experience and Improvement
Portfolio Holder

Clir Marina Munro, Planning and Economy Portfolio Holder
Clir A.R. Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder
Clir M.L. Sheehan, Operational Services Portfolio Holder
Clir P.G. Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder
Clir M.J. Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder

The Cabinet considered the following matters at the above-mentioned meeting. All
executive decisions of the Cabinet shall become effective, subject to the call-in
procedure, from 21st February, 2022.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST -

Having regard to the Council's Code of Conduct for Councillors, the following
declarations of interest were made:

Item Member Interest Reason
No.
71 Clir K.H. Personal and Council appointed Director of

Muschamp  non-prejudicial Rushmoor Homes Limited

71 Clir P.G. Personal and Council appointed Director of
Taylor non-prejudicial Rushmoor Homes Limited
MINUTES -

The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 18th January, 2022 were
confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

REVENUE BUDGET, CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND COUNCIL TAX LEVEL —
(ClIr Paul Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder)

The Cabinet considered Report No. FIN2210, which made recommendations on the
budget, Council Tax requirement and proposals for budget savings for 2022/23.

The Cabinet was reminded that the budget framework had been approved at its
meeting on 19th October, 2021. The prospects for the Medium Term Financial
Strategy had been considered at the Cabinet meeting on 18th January, 2022.
Members were advised that the Report had been prepared on the basis that there
would be no change to the provisional local government finance settlement figure,

-39-

Pack Page 1



which was due to be confirmed soon. The Medium Term Financial Strategy
continued to provide a risk-based General Fund balance of £2 million being the
minimum expected level for total working balances. The Cabinet was advised that,
despite the uncertainties around levels of Government funding and the risks around
Brexit and the general economic position, the Council had been able to prepare a
sound budget that maintained services to residents. It was confirmed that the budget
would also provide a platform for the Council to address future challenges. It was
noted, however, that there was a significant and increasing funding gap from
2022/23 onwards.

The Capital Programme of £36.703 million in 2022/23 was set out in Appendix 3 of
the Report. It was explained that the Capital Programme was focussed on delivering
against the Council’s key priority of town centre regeneration, with further schemes
aimed at enhancing the delivery of core services through improvement and
enhancement of assets. The Cabinet was informed that changes were needed to the
Capital Programme figures provided in respect of computer systems and council
offices within the Customer Experience and Improvement portfolio. The amended
figures were provided to the Cabinet and would be reflected in the report that would
be considered by the Council. The main areas where the Council would be facing
increased levels of risk and uncertainty over the medium term were set out in
Section 8 of the Report. Members were informed that the most significant risks were
the uncertainty around the level of local government funding provided by central
government, especially in light of the implementation of the Fair Funding Review and
business rates changes and ongoing pressures caused by the wider economy,
including Covid-19 and inflation. In discussing the details of the Report, Members
expressed their gratitude for the hard work of the finance team.

The Cabinet
(i) RECOMMENDED TO THE COUNCIL that approval be given to:

(@) the Medium Term Financial Strategy, as set out in Appendix 1 of
Report No. FIN2210;

(b)  the Savings and Transformation items for inclusion in the budget, as
set out in Appendix 2 of the Report;

(c) the Council Tax requirement of £7,212,340 for this Council;

(d)  the Council Tax level for Rushmoor Borough Council's purposes of
£219.42 for a Band D property in 2022/23;

(e)  the Capital Programme, as set out in Appendix 3 of the Report and
amended at the meeting;

() the Strategy for the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts, as set out in
Appendix 4 of the Report;

(g) the balances and reserves position, including proposed reserve
transfers for 2022/23, as set out in Section 5 of the Report; and

-40 -
Pack Page 2



67.

68.

(i) RESOLVED that the Council’s Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the
Leader of the Council and the Corporate Services Portfolio Holder, be
authorised to make any necessary changes to the General Fund Summary
arising from the final confirmation of the Local Government Finance
Settlement and the Business Rates Retention Scheme estimates.

DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2022 - 2025 AND UPDATE —
(ClIr Adrian Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder)

The Cabinet considered Report No. ACE2202, which set out proposed updates to
the Council’s three year business plan.

Members were informed that the business plan would build on the priorities that had
been identified by the Cabinet and that supported the Council’s longer-term vision
set out in the document ‘Your Future, Your Place - A vision for Aldershot and
Farnborough 2030°. Members were informed that the business plan had been
reworked in terms of content and layout but was still structured around the two
themes of People and Place. The Plan would be presented at the Council Meeting
on 24th February, 2022.

The Cabinet was informed that there were some further proposed changes to the
Council Plan. These changes would be incorporated in the updated draft that would
be presented to the Council. The changes included involving partners in
encouraging heathier lifestyles, the inclusion of a key activity in respect of the
Council’s target to become carbon neutral by 2030 and the amendment of a key
measure to promote an increase in the range of housing across the Borough.

The Cabinet RECOMMENDED TO THE COUNCIL that the Rushmoor Borough
Council Business Plan (April 2022 to March 2025), as set out in Report No.
ACE2202 and amended at the meeting, be approved.

COUNCIL BUSINESS PLAN AND RISK REGISTER QUARTERLY UPDATE
OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2021/22 —
(ClIr Adrian Newell, Democracy, Strategy and Partnerships Portfolio Holder)

The Cabinet received Report No. ACE2201, which set out progress in delivering the
Council Business Plan projects during the third quarter of 2021/22. Members were
informed that progress against eighteen key projects was included in the Report,
along with the Council’s business performance monitoring information and the
Council’s Corporate Risk Register. It was reported that, at the end of the third
quarter, 53% of live projects were on track, with the remainder showing an amber
status.

The Cabinet NOTED the progress made towards delivering the Council Business

Plan, as set out in Report No. ACE2201, and the risks identified within the Corporate
Risk Register in January, 2022.

-4 -

Pack Page 3



69.

70.

JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY -
(Clir Maurice Sheehan, Operational Services Portfolio Holder)

The Cabinet considered Report No. 0S2201, which set out an updated Hampshire
Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy.

Members were informed that the Strategy had been developed in 2006 and had
been updated in 2012. The new Strategy had been developed collaboratively with
the Hampshire local authorities to reflect local and national changes since 2012. It
would ensure that the Project Integra Partnership would work to meet the
requirements of the Environment Bill. The Policy and Project Advisory Board had
considered this document at its meeting on 26th January, 2022 and the Cabinet
expressed its gratitude to the Board for the feedback received and confirmed that
had been taken account of in producing the Strategy. In expressing its support for
the Strategy, the Cabinet discussed how to most effectively inform residents which
materials could be recycled locally at the current time.

The Cabinet RESOLVED that

(1) the adoption of the revised Project Integra — Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy, as set out in Report No. 0S2201, be approved; and

(i) the Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the
Operational Services Portfolio Holder, be authorised to determine how to
engage Members to ensure their input on the Partnership Agreement prior to
its consideration by the Cabinet.

UNION YARD - DISPOSAL OF PRIVATE RESIDENTIAL STOCK TO RUSHMOOR
HOMES LIMITED —
(ClIr Martin Tennant, Major Projects and Property Portfolio Holder)

The Cabinet considered Report No. REG2201, which set out a proposal to dispose
of, in principle, a leasehold interest for the private residential units contained within
the Union Yard scheme.

Members were reminded that the agreed scheme comprised 100 residential units, of
which eighteen had been identified as affordable units. Rushmoor Homes Limited
had made an offer to acquire the units at a value agreed with the Council. The
details of this process were set out in the Report and Members were assured that
this represented the best option for the Council and for local residents. In answer to
a question, it was confirmed that all of the units would be rented out by Rushmoor
Homes Limited.

The Cabinet RESOLVED that

(i) in principle, the disposal of a leasehold interest in the private residential
element of the Union Yard development, comprising 82 units, to Rushmoor
Homes Limited, at the conditional value set out in paragraph 3.7 of Report No.
REG2201, be approved, with the final terms of the disposal to be considered
by the Cabinet at a later date; and

-42 -

Pack Page 4



(i) the potential implications on the Rushmoor Homes Limited business model
arising from the current Government consultation on changes to the capital
framework in respect of minimum revenue provision be noted.

RUSHMOOR HOMES LIMITED - BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE 2022 - 2027 —
(Mr Paul Shackley, Chief Executive)

The Cabinet considered Report No. CEX2201, which set out the third business plan
for Rushmoor Homes Limited, covering the period 2022—2027. It also included the
associated Shareholder Report, covering the first eighteen months of the
company’s operation. The Report was presented on behalf of the Council’s Chief
Executive, in his capacity as the Council’s shareholder representative.

Members were reminded that Rushmoor Homes Limited had been incorporated in
April, 2020 and was wholly owned, controlled and funded by the Council. It was
reported that the company’s governance arrangements required that a rolling five-
year business plan should be approved by the Council and that a six-monthly
shareholder report should be produced. Members heard that the business plan
provided the operational, financial and risk parameters for the company and set out
a clear plan for the development of the business over the following five-year period.
It was the aspiration of Rushmoor Homes Limited to become the best performing
landlord in the Borough, with its purpose, values and business objectives focussed
on meeting local housing need through regeneration and environmental and
financial sustainability.

The Cabinet expressed strong support for the company’s business plan and felt that
this approach would deliver excellent results for the Council and for Rushmoor
residents.

The Cabinet RECOMMENDED TO THE COUNCIL that

(i) Rushmoor Homes Limited’s Business Plan 2022-2027, as set out in Report
No. CEX2201, be approved;

(i)  the amendment of the Shareholder Agreement to enable Rushmoor Homes
Limited to purchase leasehold property, where this supported the primary aim
of providing market rented homes, be approved; and

(i)  in the event of the Government introducing a requirement to provide Minimum
Revenue Provision on loans to wholly owned housing companies, an
obligation on Rushmoor Homes Limited to review the Business Plan, in
cooperation with the Council, be approved.

NOTE: Clirs K.H. Muschamp and P.G Taylor declared personal and non-prejudicial
interests in this item in respect of their involvement as Council appointed Directors of
Rushmoor Homes Limited and, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct,
remained in the meeting during the discussion and voting thereon.

-43 -
Pack Page 5



The Meeting closed at 8.05 pm.

CLLR D.E. CLIFFORD, LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

-44 -
Pack Page 6



AGENDA ITEM No. 3

CABINET COUNCILLOR MARINA MUNRO
PLANNING AND ECONOMY PORTFOLIO HOLDER
15 MARCH 2022 REPORT NO. EPSH2210

KEY DECISION? NO

ADOPTION OF BASINGSTOKE CANAL AND MANOR PARK
CONSERVATION AREA CHARACTER APPRAISALS AND MANAGEMENT
PLANS

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Council commenced its review of its Conservation Areas in 2019 to fulfil a
commitment in the Rushmoor Local Plan. The first phase of this review was
completed in early 2021 following the publication of a Conservation Area
Overview Document and the adoption of Character Appraisals and Management
Plans for both Cargate and Aldershot Military Conservation Areas.

As part of the second phase, of the Council consulted on Draft Character
Appraisals and Management Plans for the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area
and Manor Park Conservation Area between 1 November 2021 and 13
December 2021. During the consultation period 10 responses were received on
the draft Basingstoke Canal document and 11 responses were received on the
draft Manor Park document.

Following consideration of the comments received, we consider that the
boundary amendments proposed in the consultations draft documents should be
implemented.

It is recommended that Cabinet:

1) Adopt the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan (Appendix 1)

2) Adopt the Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan (Appendix 3)

Pack Page 7



INTRODUCTION

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the comments received
during the public consultation on the draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation
Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan and draft Manor Park
Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan.

Officers have considered the responses received during the consultation
period and have prepared consultation statements that summarise the
comments received and any proposed amendments.

The recommendation is that Cabinet adopts:

e the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan (Appendix 1)

e the Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan (Appendix 3)

This report relates to two separate decisions that are not significant in
terms of their effects on communities living in two or more wards in the
Borough. Therefore, this report is not a Key Decision.

BACKGROUND

The Council commenced a review of the Borough’s conservation areas in
2019 which reflects a commitment contained within the Rushmoor Local
Plan, adopted in February 2019, which itself is based on a statutory duty
on local planning authorities! to keep conservation area status under
review ‘from time to time’. The conservation area reviews support the
implementation of Local Plan Policy HE3: Development within or adjoining
a Conservation Area.

In 2020, the first phase of the review of conservation areas was completed
with the adoption of Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans
for both Cargate and Aldershot Military Conservation Areas.

The statutory definition of a conservation area is “an area of special
architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance”? The National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) states that “when considering the designation of
conservation areas, local planning authorities should ensure that an area
justifies such status because of its special architectural or historic interest,
and that the concept of conservation is not devalued through the
designation of areas that lack special interest.”

Further information on the national and local policy framework around
Conservation Areas is set out in section 3 of the published overview

T Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
2.8369(1) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Pack Page 8



document, which is intended to be read alongside the individual character
appraisals (attached as Appendix 5).

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area

2.5. The Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area spans six local authority areas?
and was designated by Hampshire and Surrey County Council’s in 1977.

2.6. The draft character appraisal for the Basingstoke Canal conservation area
that was subject to public consultation was based around four sub-areas of
differing characters and proposed some boundary changes to reflect
changes that have occurred since the designation was first made 44 years
ago, including:

a. The removal of areas that are now designated as SANG which are
secured in perpetuity and managed on behalf of the Land Trust by
the Blackwater Valley Countryside Partnership (BVCP).

b. The removal of an area of operational military land which historic
maps indicate was used as allotments around the time of the
Conservation Areas designation in 1977 but is now used as
hardstanding for military vehicle storage.

2.7. During the consultation 10 responses were received all of which are
detailed in the Consultation Statement (Appendix 2). In their response the
Land Trust who oversee the management of Wellesley Woodlands did not
raise any concerns with the proposed boundary revisions.

2.8. Historic England are supportive of the approach undertaken in producing
the character appraisal and management plan and have suggested that
we could retain an area of land within the canal conservation area even
though it is also included within the Aldershot Military Conservation Area.
We do not consider that the woodland justifies double designation.

Manor Park Conservation Area

2.9. The draft character appraisal for Manor Park conservation area that was
subject to public consultation was based around two sub-areas of differing
characters and proposed some boundary changes to reflect changes that
have occurred since the designation was last reviewed in 1989, including:

a. The removal of the Campbell fields development that was
construction in the early 2000’s on the site of the former Manor Park
Girls School.

3 Hart, Rushmoor, Surrey heath, Guildford, Woking and Runnymede

Pack Page 9



b. The removal of Eggars Court and Cherry Lodge developments that
were constructed in the 1970’s

2.10. During the consultation 11 responses were received all of which are
detailed in the Consultation Statement (Appendix 4). Historic England (the
public body responsible for historic environment) agree with the logic of
removing recent housing development from the Conservation Area. Some
respondents considered that the modern Campbell Fields development
should remain within the conservation area, however this area does not
demonstrate special architectural or historic interest which is the test for
conservation area designation.

General comments

2.11. There were also comments received that did not specify which draft
document they related to. The comments received concerned why
development has been allowed within Conservation Areas? The purpose
of conservation areas designation is not to prevent development and
therefore change is inevitable but as planning authority we seek to
manage change in a way that conserves and enhances the character and
appearance of historic areas.

2.12. There were some general comments received about why the Council is
reviewing the conservation areas.

3. DETAILS OF THE PROPOSALS

3.1 Officers have considered the responses received during the consultation
period and consider that the conservation area boundaries amendments
proposed in the draft documents should be adopted.

3.2 There have been some minor amendments to the final character
appraisals and management plans which are recommended for adoption.

3.3 The published overview document sets out the context in which
conservation areas in Rushmoor have been designated, which includes
the legislative and planning policy framework as well as the geographic
and historic setting of the borough. The production of a separate overview
document removes the need to repeat this information in each individual
character appraisal and management plan.

Alternative Option

3.4 An alternative option would be not to adopt the Conservation Area
Character Appraisal and Management Plan for Basingstoke Canal and
Manor Park. However, this would mean the Council will have failed both to
carry out its statutory legal duty and to implement the commitment set out
in the adopted Local Plan. In addition, the lack of an up to date character

Pack Page 10



appraisal and management plan increases the risk of unsympathetic
development within the Conservation Areas.

4. IMPLICATIONS
Risks

41. There are not considered to be any risks associated with the
implementation of the recommendations of this report.

Legal Implications

4.2. There are not considered to be any legal implications associated with the
implementation of the recommendations of this report.

Financial and Resource Implications

4.3. There are not considered to be any financial implications arising from the
decision, other than minor costs associated with production of hard copies
of the documentation, which will be met from existing budgets.

Equalities Impact Implications

4.4. The adoption of the documents is unlikely to lead to equalities implications.

CONCLUSIONS

4.5. This second phase of conservation area reviews have been carried out in
line with the council’s statutory duty, to fulfil a commitment in the recently
adopted Local Plan and in support of Policy HE3 of the Local Plan. The
progression of reviewing the Borough’s conservation areas are a service
priority that feature in the Business Plan.

4.6. The adoption of the documents will assist in preserving and enhancing the
historic character of the Basingstoke Canal and Manor Park Conservation

Areas, by providing a framework for determining planning applications and
ensuring that development proposals are of high quality.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Appendix 1 — Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan

Appendix 2 — Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Consultation Statement

Appendix 3 — Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan

Pack Page 11



Appendix 4 — Manor Park Conservation Area Consultation Statement

The adopted Local Plan is available to view at:
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/rushmoorlocalplan

Information on the Borough’s existing conservation areas including the
Conservation Area Overview Document is available to view at
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas

CONTACT DETAILS:

Report Author — lan Mawer / Principal Planning Officer / Email:
ian.mawer@rushmoor.gov.uk / Tel: 01252 398733

Head of Service — Tim Mills / Head of Economy, Planning and Strategic Housing
/ Email: tim.mills@rushmoor.gov.uk / Tel: 01252 398542

Pack Page 12


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/rushmoorlocalplan
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas
mailto:ian.mawer@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:tim.mills@rushmoor.gov.uk

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

APPENDIX 1

March 2022




Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

1. INTRODUCTION......ciiiiiiiittnnniiiiititeesssesssssssstssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssns 2
OVERVIEW DOCUMENT 1ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaaaaaaeas 2
APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN ...utiiiiiiiiieiititeee e e e eecititteeeeeeestaaaeeeeeeeseaataeeaaaeseansssaassaasseaasnssessaaesessssssseaaeseannnses 2
SUB-CHARACTER AREA APPRAISALS ....vevettreresereresesssesesesssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssseseseseseseseteee........... 2

2. AN OVERVIEW OF BASINGSTOKE CANAL CONSERVATION AREA ......ccccoitteiiitinniiininniinieniiniesssnissssssannns 3
DESIGNATION HISTORY ..tteiiieiieiiiiteeteeesseitteeteeesseatteeeeeesessantraaeeeesesssnssaseeeesaasssssaseaeesssnsssnsaeeesessanssnseeeessssnssnnneeenenns 3
12710 A 21 ST 1 PP 3
SUMMARY OF KEY CHARACTERISTICS 1.uuvvvtttteeeeessuurrereeeesessssreseeessessasssssessessssassssseesessssssssssessessssssnsssseessssssssssseesssssnnsns 3

3. SUBAREA1-OLDIVELY ROAD TO EELMOOR BRIDGE .......cccceuuiiiiiiiinnnnnniiisinineessnssssssissssssssssssssssssssssnss 6
AAREA SUMMARY ....ettttttteteresesesesesesssesesesesssssssesssssesesesssssesesssssesesessseseseseseseee.................................................. 6
LY 2L PP PPPPPPPPPPPIRt 6
PUBLIC REALM 1.ttt e e e e nanasanananann 6
BUILDING FORM AND DETAILS «..uuvvtveeeeeeeseuuureeeeessassunsseeeessssssnsssseessssssssssseesssssssssssseesssssssssssseessssssssssssesssssssssssssessessss 7

4 SUB AREA 2 - EELMOOR BRIDGE TO FARNBOROUGH ROAD BRIDGE ........ccccvuviiiiiiiinnnnnniisssnnneenssesssenns 13
AREA SUMMARY ...vttteeeieesurrereeeeeessasseseseessssassssseesesssassssssesseessssasssessessssssssssessesssssssssseseesssesssssssseeesssssssssnseeesssssnnses 13
VIEWS cettttteeeeeeettttee e e e e st eeeeeeeesaaabaaeeeeeeesassaaaeaeeeesaassseseeaeeesaasseeaeeeeesasseeeeeeeeeeaannteeeeeeeeeannntaeaeeeeeeaannraeaeeeeeenannres 13
PUBLIC REALM ... iiittieee e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e s abbtaeeeeeeseatataeaeeaeseaassbaseaaeseaasssaaasaaesesassaaseeaaeesaassssseaaeessenssrennes 14
BUILDING FORM AND DETAILS ....uutttteeeeeeeesiususeeeeseeaaasssssessessaaassssssssesseasassssssssssessassssssssssessnssssssssssssenssssssssssssenssssssnees 14

5. SUB AREA 3 - FARNBOROUGH ROAD BRIDGE TO ASH LOCK ....ccccceittmuiiiinnsinieniciiensssniessssssesssssssssssssenes 22
AAREA SUMMARY ....etttttereteseresessresesesssesesesesssesssesssssesssesesesssesssesesssesssesesesete.st............................................... 22
VIEWS cettttteeeeeeeitttteee e e e st eteeeeeessabaareeeeeesasssaaeeaeeesaasssesaeeeeesansseeaeeeeesasseneaeeeeesaasnnteeeeeeeeeaaantaeaeeeeeeaannraeaeeeeeennnnes 22
PUBLIC REALM ..ttt iittieete e eeett ettt e e ettt e e e e e sttt e e e e e seasaaeeaeeeesassnebaeeeesseassssaeseeeeeesasssaneaeaesesansssssaaaessssnssnsennees 23
BUILDING FORM AND DETAILS «..uuvvvereeeeeeasurreseeeesessanssssesesesssssssssssessssssssssssesssssssssssseesssssssssssseeesssssssssssessessssssnssenees 23

6. SUB AREA 4 - GOVERNMENT ROAD TO AQUEDUCT OVER THE BLACKWATER VALLEY ROAD................ 30
AAREA SUMMARY ....etttttereteseseseseresesesssesesesesssesssesssssesesesesesssesssssesssesssesesesete..e........................................... 30
LY 2L P PPPPPPPPPRt 30
PUBLIC REALM 1.t s nananannnn 30
BUILDING FORM AND DETAILS «..uuuvvverteeeeessnrreeeeessessansssseseessssssssssessesssssssssseseesssssssssssessssssssssssesesssssssssssessesssssssssenees 30

7. LISTED BUILDINGS......ccccuuiiiiiiiiiemnnnniisesnineesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssnsnnss 36

8. IMANAGEIMENT PLAN ....cuiiiiiiiinnnniiiiniitetssmssissssimssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsanss 37
INTRODUGCTION ttttiiiittteteeeeeesutreseeeesessnsseeeeeesessansssseeesessassssssaseeessassssssessessssssssssseesssssssssssseeeeesssnssssseseeesssnssnsenees 37
GOOD STEWARDSHIP «.iiieieeeieieeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaaaaaaaaaans 37
DEVELOPMENT IMIANAGEMENT ...uuttttteeeeeeiiuttteeeeseeesasssseesseesaaassssessaesseassssasssasseasasssssessssesaassssssssessanssssesssessennssssnsens 37
IMPLEMENTATION AND IMIONITORING......cceuutttteeeeeeeiantttreeeeeeseaatssseseeesseassssassassseasasssssssessesaassssssssessanssssssseessensssssnees 37

APPENDIX A — AREAS REMOVED FROM CONSERVATION AREA FOLLOWING REVIEW ... 38
WOODLAND THAT FORMS PART OF THE WELLESLEY SUITABLE ALTERNATIVE NATURAL GREEN SPACE (SANG) .......cvveevveeennnee. 38
MOD LAND TO THE SOUTH OF THE CANAL FORMING PART OF TRAVERS / GALE BARRACKS ...cccvveereveerereesreesnreesreesnreesseenanens 38
WOODLAND TO THE NORTH OF CANAL BETWEEN THE A325 FARNBOROUGH ROAD AND QUEENS AVENUE .....ccevvuvvrereeeeeenannns 39
LAND BETWEEN THE CANAL AND GOLD LANE. ... uiieieieieieie e s e s naan 39

1

Pack Page 14



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022

1. Introduction

Overview Document

11

1.2

This document should be read alongside the Rushmoor Conservation Area Overview document! which

sets out the context in which conservation areas in Rushmoor have been designated. This includes the
legislative and planning policy framework as well as the geographic and historic setting of the borough.
The Overview document also explains what you need planning permission for, if your property is within
a conservation area.

Whilst nationally listed buildings may be included within a conservation area, it is the combination of
factors such as buildings, walls, trees, hedges, open spaces, views and historic settlement patterns that
create the sense of place that gives the area its special character and appearance. Less tangible senses
and experiences, such as noise or smells, can also play a key part in forming the distinctive character
of an area. It is this character, rather than simply individual buildings, that the conservation area
designation seeks to preserve and enhance.

Appraisal and Management Plan

1.3

1.4

This appraisal document sets out the special architectural and historic interest of the Basingstoke Canal
Conservation Area, which justifies its designation as a heritage asset, the character or appearance of
which it is desirable to preserve or enhance. The appraisal also identifies which features of the
conservation area make a positive or negative contribution to its significance and is accompanied by a
management plan which sets out ways in which the Basingstoke Canal Authority and other interested
parties, the local community and the council can manage change in a way that conserves and enhances
the historic area.

Character appraisals and management plans provide a framework and guide to enable planning
decisions to be made on a site-specific basis, within the context of national planning policy and the
adopted Local Plan.

Sub-Character Area Appraisals

1.5

The Conservation Area has been split into four-character areas based on their character, historical
development and the contribution they make to the conservation areas. The four areas are as follows:
e Sub Area 1-0Id Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge
e Sub Area 2 — Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge
e Sub Area 3 - Farnborough Road Bridge to Government Road
e Sub Area 4 — Government Road to Aqueduct

1 Document available to view at: https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas

2
Pack Page 15


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

2. An Overview of Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area

Designation History

2.1 The Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area was designated in 1977 by Hampshire County Council. This
Appraisal and the accompanying Management Proposals are being prepared as part of an ongoing
review of all the conservation areas within Rushmoor Borough.

2.2 The Basingstoke Canal is an inland waterway, running from Basingstoke in Hampshire to the River Wey
Navigation in Surrey. It follows a meandering west to east course through Rushmoor Borough passing
through picturesque countryside, woodland, and Aldershot Military Town with the canal forming a
border between two distinct areas, notably North and South Camps.

2.3 The canal was constructed in in the late 18th century to provide easy transport of agricultural produce
to Metropolitan markets and its construction opened up the area for farming. The canal opened in
1794 and although never commercially successful, it did play a valuable role in the construction of
Aldershot Camp from 1854 through the supply of building materials and later food and drink.

2.4 The canal’s picturesque surroundings made it a notable leisure resource in the mid-19th century, a role
it continues to fulfil to the present day. During the 20th century, the declining use of the canal and a
general lack of maintenance led to a gradual deterioration. During the Second World War, the canal
formed part of the GHQ Line, a line of defences running from Somerset to Yorkshire via Aldershot and
Essex. As a result, pill boxes, and other defensive features remain along the line of the canal and in its
immediate setting.

2.5 The interest of the canal as an historic waterway is supported by the architectural value of the
structures along its course. These include 18th century canal bridges, military girder bridges as well as
a set of canal locks and the Grade Il listed Ash Lock Cottage.

Biodiversity

2.6 The Basingstoke Canal is a waterway of national importance being designated for its unique water
chemistry and the range of plants and invertebrates that this supports. It is considered the most
biodiverse freshwater body in England & Wales. The full length of the Canal and the majority of the
three ‘flashes’ located within the borough are designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

Summary of key Characteristics

2.7 This Character Appraisal concludes that the key positive characteristics of the Basingstoke Canal
Conservation Area are:
e The Basingstoke Canal represents one of the inland waterways constructed in England in the
late 18th century representing an engineering achievement of great historic significance and a
significant example of human impact on the environment;
e The canal’s construction contributed towards the development of the Aldershot Military
Garrison;

Pack Page 16



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022

The canal’s reuse as a ‘stop-line’ during the Second World War is represented by the survival
of military features (such as the locally listed pill box) and other features along parts of its
length, illustrating the impact of the war on the British landscape;

The Canal provides an attractive green corridor and is designated as such in the Rushmoor Local
Plan;

The Canalside including the tow path is used for leisure and recreation as a route for cycling,
walking, pleasure boats, canoeing and angling, providing an attractive green route avoiding
busy roads;

The Canal has considerable value to the ecology of the borough and has been designated as a
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

Pack Page 17



The Bungalow
Bramshot Farm

hot Farm

= TLA™ 2 AN

Basingstoke Canal
Conservation Area

\

\
nborough
North 'y

1

\ The Quays
‘V

!

Farnborough \

Street

Southwood
Rafborough

Flight Saféty

International

Pystock Gate

Wa

Com

Miles Hi
Eelmoor
Hill East

Centre Hill

Round H

The Royal
Pavilion

Bourley Hill
Skirmishing
Hill

Aungry
o)

Hill o

Long Bottom :
Heath End

Upper:Hale

1,000
I

Farnborough

fts’

imon

The Bungalow

ill

Weybourne

Hale

2,000 Me

A

|

' |

/

|
/

f

|

/

f
]

J

South
Farnborough)
‘\

North.Camp

Montgomery
Lines /
Ddgt"

Fres Bac D Conservation Area Boundary




Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022

3. Sub Area 1 - Old Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Area Summary

This section of the Conservation Area adjoins Hart District Councils administrative area where the full
length of the canal is designated as a Conservation Area which is supported by an appraisal and
management plan.

This section of the conservation area includes the canal and a bordering tree belt between
environmentally designated land to the North including Eelmoor Marsh Site of Special Scientific
Interest (SSSI) which also forms part of the Thames basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA) and a
tree belt that provides a buffer between the canal and A323 Fleet Road beyond which lies military
training land which forms part of the SPA.

This section of the conservation is generally peaceful due to a lack of activity on this stretch of the
canal other than the occasional pedestrian or cyclist making. There is some road noise is evident on
the sections of the tow path that are located closest to the A323 Fleet Road.

Views

This section of the Conservation Area is generally well enclosed by mature trees for the majority of its
length with a number of features from the canals use as part of the GHQ Line in the second world war
visible from the tow path including anti-tank cubes. The predominant type of views due to the
meandering nature of the canal along this section and the tree cover are ‘unfolding views’ as you travel
along the tow path (images 1 and 2).

There are sections along the tow path where there are gaps in the tree cover that provide glimpsed
distant views out of the conservation area to the north east over Eelmoor Marsh (image 3).

The character of the conservation area changes when reaching the final section of this sub area that
adjoins the boundary of Farnborough Airfield that provides far reaching views of the adjoining
heathland and woodland. The Eelmoor flashes are a contributing factor to the feeling of openness at
this section of the conservation area which frames Eelmoor bridge which also provides an elevated
viewing location (images 4 and 5).

Outside of the conservation area boundary a small number of buildings associated with operations at
Farnborough Airport and Eelmoor Marsh are visible from the tow path and from the centre point of
Eelmoor bridge.

Public Realm

The tow path is the main form of public realm along this section of the canal and there are some historic
war defence measures visible that contribute towards its character.

Pack Page 19



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022
Building form and details

3.9 Eelmoor bridge is a girder bridge constructed by the military in the 1920’s that replaced an earlier
brick-built bridge, the footings of which are visible under the present bridge on the southern side of
the canal. The bridge is the only structure within the sub area and it provides vehicular access from the

A323 Fleet Road to Laffans’s Road.

Pack Page 20



Sub Area 1

Old Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge

Miles Hill

Ball Hill

540 Metres

Key

Pack Page 21

Conservation Area Boundary




1911 OS Map of Sub Area 1
Old lvely Road to Eelmoor Bridge

=
Pyestock
1’%\»/[
iy 284
ngfgy\f;,,,w
v
m\wu““‘ o i
;a "101679 555 e ‘D"‘”F
.ty 4 Vo631 /,

L'clmoor Flask o

2551 S &
MM/
e
'

Spur il

D Conservation Area Boundary




Sub Area 1— Old Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge

Image 1 —View Looking East approximately 100m from the border with Hart District.

Pack Page 23

Image 2—View Looking East approximately 500m from the border with Hart District



Sub Area 1— Old Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge

Image 3—View to the North of the adjoining Special Protection Area (SPA) and Site of Special Scien-

PMePag'euzq_m Eelmoor Bridge Looking West towards the Flashes



Sub Area 1— Old Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge

Image 5—View looking West towards Eelmoor Bridge

Image 6 —Historic Marker Post alongside the tow path Pack Page 25



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

4. Sub Area 2 - Eelmoor bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Area Summary

Eelmoor bridge acts as a transition point of the Basingstoke Canal character. Sub Area 2 forms part of
the Welelsley Woodland Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace which is reflected by the
improvements made to the tow path surface and furniture provided (such as benches and wayfinding
signposts) through the area.

The Canal meanders around Dukes wood a sizable woodland that contains Puckridge Barracks within
its centre. The perimeter fence around the barracks can be seen occasionally from the tow path but
the barracks themselves are well screened. There are also some historic military defences visible on
the southern bank.

Claycart Flashes that act as a mini reservoir for the canal, storing water for when levels are low are a
key feature within this sub area framing Claycart Bridge which at is northern side contains historic road
block posts (image 12) can be seen reflecting the bridges use as a military crossing over the Basingstoke
Canal from local training areas.

A new 200m mooring platform has recently been constructed to enable the mooring of 10 boats along
this site that forms part of the Farnborough Road Wharf. The platform travels underneath the locally
listed Inglis bridge. Whilst the wharf area is relatively quiet now, although still used for launching
canoes, historically it was a key location in the landing of building materials that were transport by
canal to enable the construction of Aldershot Camp. Following this period, the wharf was used by
rowing boats and skiffs with two boat houses (no longer evident) constructed in this location.

On the northern side of the canal is a sluice which acts as a key feature prior to the canal narrowing to
travel under the locally listed Wharf Bridge that enables northbound vehicular traffic on the
Farnborough Road to cross the canal. That bridge was constructed in circa 1790 and is constructed of
red brick in English bond, providing a low brick single arch bridge with parapet and half round coping
bricks.

Views

The key viewpoints within the character area as are follows:

Views looking East from the centre of Eelmoor Bridge into the sub area (image 7).

e Views from the tow path looking west towards Eelmoor bridge (image 8)

e Views from the tow path looking south towards Puckridge barracks where historic defence
measures are visible adjacent to the canal (image 9).

e Views from the tow path looking north through the narrow tree belt over Lafans Road into
land within the airport operational boundary that is a Site of Interest for Nature Conservation
(SINC) (image 10)

e Views approaching Claycart Bridge from the tow path from either direction (images 11 and

13)

13

Pack Page 26



4.7

4.8

4.9

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022

e Views of Claycart Flashes from the tow path

e Views from Claycart Bridge that connects the Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space
located either side of the canal and as a result is well used by pedestrians and cyclists.

e Views from the tow path looking north through the narrow tree belt over the historic Army
Golf Course (image 14)

e View of the locally listed Inglis bridge and pill box from the tow path.

e Views from the tow path approaching the historic wharf bridge adjoining the recently
constructed mooring platform on the southern bank of the canal (image 16)

Public Realm

The canal tow path forms part for the entire length of the sub section forms part of the Wellesley
Woodland Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANG) and as a result there is some street
furniture that has been introduced such as benches and timber signs posts (image 15) alongside the
tow path to direct people to the adjoining woodlands where these form part of the designated SANG.

The tow path itself has been resurfaced as part of the works that were required for the land to become
SANG. The recent construction of a 200m mooring platform as part of the Farnborough Road Wharf
(image 16) contributes to the setting of the canal.

Building form and details

There are no physical occupied buildings within the sub area, however a key part of the character are
the four bridges that cross the canal (as noted above in the key views).

e Eelmoor bridge (image 7) is a girder bridge constructed by the military that replaced an earlier
brick-built bridge, the footings of which are visible under the present bridge on the southern side
of the canal (opposite side to the tow path).

e Claycart Bridge (image 11) is a girder bridge that was designed by Captain Hopkins during the First
World War to replace an earlier military drawbridge.

e Inglis Military Bridge is the only remaining example of an Inglis Portable Military Bridge — Light
Type with its pyramidal construction. The Inglis bridge currently carries a utility pipe over the
canal.

e Located near the Inglis bridge is a Pill Box that was constructed between 1940 and 1941 for
defence purposes during World War Two as part of the GHQ_Line.

e A325 Farnborough Road Wharf bridge is understood to predate the military camp and have been
constructed in circa 1790 although substantial strengthening works were varied out in 1914. The
bridge now carries the northbound carriageway of the A325 over the canal.

14
Pack Page 27



Sub Area 2
|Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

Watts' Common

Eelmoor
Hill East

a"'ROad

~\ ‘y""i"l"
( TUDTIA

A}
The'Bungalow

Rushmoor
Bottom

Rushmoor Hill

Key
Cla ycart Bottom - D Conservation Area Boundary
N I Nationally Listed Building

ck Page o
T 0 9 2|§5 C 660 Metres - Locally Listed Heritage Asset

)




1911 OS Map of Sub Area 2

T T

Eelmoor Bridge to Farhnboroughd Road Bridge

a8 916 s

& The King's Pevilion

-ms

Bridge 11!

Triigl

i 4 " Compingraund
Luckridge
IR
B B

FR 2

moor. Plain

St

Bass Flog Sty
(R thveerks

356
5ot

pees

s

s6 A

i ) P .

Claycart Iill w0
; E AR

: Rt

TE i & Camping

Ground.

s
e
ot

o A G

S

ey

XA

297 S

ushmoor

Beovaution Ground

e

B
PN
o
Pas SRR g
L e S

[olN]
-
N

o g
PR T

a8 s

SNETO

s

a

e e Pack Page 2

680 Metres. . Ca .
R o o D Conservation Area Boundary




Sub Area 2 — Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

Image 7—View to the East into sub area from Eelmoor bridge

Pgne‘gepag'euwhe West looking towards Eelmoor Bridge



Sub Area 2 — Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

Image 9—View to the South over the canal towards Puckridge Barracks with historic defence measures visible

Pack Page 31

Image 10—View to the North East from the tow path of Lafans Road into Farnborough Airport SINC



Sub Area 2 — Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

Image 11—View Eooking East towards Claycart Bridge

Pack Page 32

Image 12—Historic Defence measures—Claycart Bridge Concrete Road Blocks



Sub Area 2 — Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

Image 13— View looking West Towards Claycart Bridge

Pack Page 33

Image 14— View looking North from the tow path into the Army Golf Course



Sub Area 2 — Eelmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge

Image 15— Signage and Benches provided alongside the Canal as part of the Wellesley SANG

P Mepgg@egzpoking East towards the locally listed Farnborough Road Bridge



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022

5. Sub Area 3 - Farnborough Road Bridge to Ash Lock

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Area Summary

This sub area of the canal travels through military land holdings and forms part of the Wellesley
Woodlands SANG which is reflected by the improvements made to the tow path surface and furniture
provided (such as benches and wayfinding signposts) through the area. The canal maintains its
enclosed nature with established tree buffers.

The transition from sub area 2 into this sub area is by travelling along to tow path under the A325
bridge that was constructed in the early 1970’s to allow vehicles to travel southbound on the A325.
This bridge has no historic merit however once under this low bridge the feel of enclosure due to the
established tree coverage either side of the canal provides the sense of enclosure with views being
‘concentrated’ down the canal.

Despite the location of the canal between military land holdings, it is peaceful once away from the
highway crossings, such as the A325 bridges and Queens Avenue Iron bridge. There is also some noise
associated with military land holdings either side of the canal.

More activity is observed along this section with pedestrians and cyclists and the area around Ash Lock
Cottage makes a significant contribution towards the conservation areas character and appearance
with the cottage being nationally listed (Grade 1) and the only set of locks within the borough being
locally listed along with a historic crane.

There are historic military defences visible from the tow path, including anti-tank cubes, reflecting the
canals historic function as part of the GHQ Line in the second world war.

Views

This section of the Conservation Area is well enclosed by trees for much of its length. The predominant
type of views due to the meandering nature of the canal along this section and the tree cover are
‘unfolding views’ as you travel along the tow path, although there are glimpsing views through the tree
cover into military land located to the south and occasionally to the north around Mon’s Barracks.

The key viewpoints in the sub area are:

View travelling East and exiting the section of tow path under the modern A325 (image 17)
Views of the Iron bridge from the tow path heading in either direction (images 18 and 19)
Views of the canal from the footways located on the Iron Bridge

O O O O

Views of the modern pedestrian footbridge connecting the military barracks on either side of
the canal (image 22)

Views of the Ash Lock Cottage and crane (image 23)

View of Ash Lock (image 24)

(@)

22

Pack Page 35



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022
Public Realm
5.8 The canal tow path forms part for the entire length of the sub section forms part of the Wellesley
Woodlands Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANG) and as a result there is some street
furniture that has been introduced such as benches and timber signs posts alongside the tow path to
direct people to the adjoining woodlands where these form part of the designated SANG.

5.9 The area adjoining the tow path at Ash Lock provides a small area of open space with picnic benches
which is a character change from focused views resulting from the enclosed nature of the canal to an
area of openness.

Building form and details

5.10 Within the sub area there are three bridges, only the locally listed Iron Bridge is historic that was
constructed in circa 1865-1870 and has been refurbished. The views of this bridge from the tow path
make a valuable contribution towards the conservation areas setting. In addition, pedestrians crossing
the bridge are provided with views into the conservation area.

5.11 Unlike the other sub areas of the conservation there are operational buildings, including nationally
listed Ash Lock Cottage. In addition, Ash Lock and the historic crane are locally listed and make a
valuable contribution towards the conservation areas character and appearance.

23

Pack Page 36



Sub Area 3
Farnborough Road Bridge to Ash Lock

R et R ’

North'Camp
S

The Cambridge
Primary School

Montgomery
Lines

Thorn IH“'

W e 1

Round Hill

Talavera Infant School b 2
Talavera Junior School o N Key

Town
D Conservation Area Boundary

: n — 'Uhiv & - Nationally Listed Building
A‘A l(l)d e rgh Oﬁ?o AL\ 6?0 Mef,t':'?,s]d I Locally Listed Heritage AssF;ta( K Page 37

4 NIt am a1

"'Il_/‘




> e g e T
e g Ho

L s

1911 OS Map ofSub Area 3
o Ash Lock

Farnborough

R s

Connaught

Hospital

MARLBY

Queens Parade

S
Swmatlshot Hil

Camp Farmn

& (0D S Borks)

Porade Groved ‘,
o 5 .
< & Bt George's Chiu

e )

Parade
Grond

e

s PR

2

N o
Ll 1R
(X5 D

N
R
3
3
Recreation Grownd g‘

Eeas

&
¢

2wy
; @@a_g/(dﬁﬂ

P

N s
Saiert \.W*/\/ //




Sub Area 3 — Farnborough Road to Ash lock

Image 17— View East from the modern A325 Farnborough Road Bridge

Image 18—View East towards the Locally listed Iron Bridge Pack Page 39



Sub Area 3 — Farnborough Road to Ash lock

Image 19— View South West of the locally listed Iron Bridge

Image 20—Historic marker post alongside canal

Pack Page 40



Sub Area 3 — Farnborough Road Bridge to Ash lock

Image 21— View South towards military accommodation

Pack Page 41

Image 22— View looking East of the modern pedestrian bridge connecting military sites



Sub Area 3 — Farnborough Road Bridge to Ash lock

Image 23—View Looking West towards the Nationally listed Ash lock Cottage and locally listed crane

Pack Page 42 Image 24— Locally Listed Ash Lock



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022
6. Sub Area 4 — Government Road to aqueduct over the Blackwater Valley Road

Area Summary

6.1 Government Road bridge forms the start of this sub area which is a bridge of no heritage value that is
due to be replaced as part of the Wellesley redevelopment. Pedestrians can travel under the bridge
using the stairs, although an alternative level access is provided by the tow path however this requires
pedestrians and cyclists to cross Government Road.

6.2 The tow path and canal travel under a railway bridge which act as a character transition point with the
elevation of this section of the canal offering some far-reaching views and the reduced tree coverage
providing a sense of openness.

6.3 The canal remains elevated until it reaches the aqueduct that was constructed in the mid 1990’s to
enable the canal to pass over the over the A331 Blackwater Valley Relief Road and river Blackwater.
The aqueduct is located outside of Rushmoor borough in neighbouring Surrey Heath.

Views
6.4 The core views from the sub area are:

e From the elevated section of the canal tow path looking North there are sections with open views
over the Gold Valley Lakes and beyond (image 27).

e From the elevated section of the canal there are breaks in the established tree buffer located on
the embankments providing views to the south of the built-up area of Aldershot (image 28).

e View looking east towards the Aqueduct located in Surrey Heath Borough (image 29).

Public Realm

6.5 This sub area lies outside of the Wellesley SANG designation and as a result the tow path surface isn’t
of such a high standard and there is no street furniture (such as benches or signage) along this section
of canal.

Building form and details

6.6 Within the sub area there are two bridges including the government Road bridge that is of no historic
significance and is due to be replaced as part of the Wellesley redevelopment. The railway bridge is of
an unknown age and is constructed out of steel.

30
Pack Page 43



Sub Area 4
Government Road to Aqueduct

L[

Key

D Conservation Area Boundary




/S

AL

SThull

B.Ss.W 4 D.

No.151

N

¥
No.152
/

5

N

|

1911 OS Map of Sub Area 4
Government Road to Aqueduct

Ng. 178
B.55 WA D M

No. |77'<SJ7\'

ST

—’\ RYLLAE
S ’ yoswap % 'Eg.w.m D.
SN AN ~ S .

N DA " N %‘)Q
Gasworks Bridge

Lﬁarblv\//to Floods
128 \

3

3359 N

v iae

i

LN

= No.790¥/,
e )

N Ml

[ASESNTTTR

B.53,W. 4 D2
veven, No.

2

Zrog~
I‘[ ~
792,700 / )‘r:p,

No.1624

B.Ss.W. 4 D._

/’ )
Nﬁ,[/f)e No.157.

N
N\

[

1-005

v|5é.

260 Metre

0 Netros

o
i)
Gpdcma e

P Sy
~LUilj

4 PEEET
-, ~ -
A ».Eﬁ:' -
a3 [
No.,7Q1¥7% ~

B

BN

T T

TR

L
i wm’ﬂ ELVVERTRRERRRLLLL, S e
[RRIRART! P
L

it

133 1\%

RN

0 AT, et
x,i_mmm,\mgu LI m‘ (1]\ !

)

3%,

.%}Deadbrook Farm
AT

L4
60« ¥No.
/

165
12-484

/

{

L rp

/

c/wut“

G LB('Ck Cllt

aﬁaﬁ‘p‘yr() () g]_ Pn&S%

2.9
S8 o

2
RN

utting

DEASRT:
AARETEAtAY il J

F

e

LT N
N

Pack Page 4

Conservation Area Boundary




Sub Area 4 — Government Road to A331 Aquaduct

Image 25—View Looking North West towards Government Road Bridge and Ash Lock beyond

Image 26— View looking South east rom Government Road Bridge towards the railway bridge

Pack Page 46



Sub Area 4 — Government Road to A331 Aquaduct

Image 27—View Looking North East over the Lakes

Image 28— View looking South West with views of modern housing development.

Pack Page 47



Sub Area 4 — Government Road to A331 Aquaduct

Image 29— View looking east towards the aqueduct over the Blackwater Valley Road

Pack Page 48



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022

7. Listed Buildings

Nationally Listed Buildings or Structures

Name

Grade Link to Historic England

Ash Lock Cottage Il https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-

entry/1092635

Locally Listed Buildings or Structures

Reference Name

LL5032
LL5071
LL5195
LL5196
LL5045
LL5046

Basingstoke Canal bridge, Farnborough Road

Iron Bridge, Queens Avenue

Pill Box by the Basingstoke Canal, west of Wharf Bridge
Inglis Bridge

Crane at Ash Lock

Ash Lock

36

Pack Page 49


https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1092635
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1092635

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

8. Management Plan

Introduction

8.1 The management plan outlines a positive strategy to deal with the threats and opportunities identified
in the conservation appraisal.

Good Stewardship

8.2 The Council will work with key partners in managing the land within the Conservation Area including
the Basingstoke Canal Authority, Basingstoke Canal Society, Blackwater Valley Countryside Partnership
(BVCP), Grainger Plc, the Land Trust and Natural England.

Development Management

8.3 New development within the setting of the conservation area (within, views into and out of) should
also be carefully managed as it has the potential to detract from its character and special interest.

8.4 In summary, any change to the conservation area should seek to:

e Preserve its historical features;

e Enhance, where possible, its special interest;

e Positively contribute to its established character; and
e Be of high quality.

Implementation and Monitoring

8.5 Progress on the implementation of the management plan and the extent to which planning policies in
the Local Plan are complied with or effective in delivering community aspirations for conservation
areas will be monitored through the council’s authority monitoring report.

8.6 These assessments can then be used to review and, if necessary, modify the planning policies as part
of the 5-year review of the local plan. They can also be used to review and, if necessary, modify this
character appraisal and management plan as part of the ongoing review of the Borough’s conservation
areas.

37

Pack Page 50



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal — March 2022
Appendix A — Areas removed from Conservation Area following review

A.1 Conservation areas are intended to recognise areas of historic or architectural character. The location
of the boundary for a conservation area is a qualitative decision relating to character. It is essential for
the protection of conservation areas, that only areas which are a heritage asset are designated so that
the concept of conservation is not devalued (NPPF Paragraph 191).

A.2 During the public consultation on the draft Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan that was
undertaken between November 2021 and December 2021, it was proposed to remove several areas
from the conservation area are shown in the map overleaf and summarised in the text below.

A3. Whilst some comments on the removal of these areas were received, we do not consider that they
provided any evidence to justify the retention of these areas within the conservation area.

A.4 The boundary changes that were made are shown in the map overleaf with the text below summarising
why the changes were made:

Woodland that forms part of the Wellesley Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANG)

A.5 The Wellesley SANG is secured in perpetuity through a legal agreement and there are restrictions on
development that can take place in these areas. In addition, as part of the legal agreement and
planning conditions associated with the Wellesley developments planning consent an Ecological
Management Plan was submitted and approved which sets out the programme for delivering a scheme
of ecological improvements works, including a range of habitat improvement works. Therefore, given
the protection provided by SANG designation it was not considered necessary to include these areas
of land within the conservation area.

A.6 The management of the SANGs are a legal requirement and an Ecological Management Plan was
approved by the Council for the land in question. The Blackwater Valley Countryside Partnership
(BVCP) has been appointed by the Land Trust to manage Wellesley Woodlands.

Minor boundary amendment to the land adjoining St Omer Barracks

A.7 Since the conservation area was initially designated in 1977, St Omer Barracks has been redeveloped
to provide modern accommodation for military personal. The boundary of the conservation area was
therefore amended to track recognisable ground features, in this instance the perimeter fencing. This
proposed change resulted in the inclusion of some additional land that predominantly forms part of a
tree belt. This land is in Ministry of Defence control.

MOD land to the south of the canal forming part of Travers / Gale Barracks

A.8 This area forms part of the military garrison and consists of large areas of hardstanding (tarmac) that
are predominantly used for the storage of military vehicles (including HGVs). Historic Mapping
identifies that the area in question was utilised as allotment gardens around the time the Conservation

38
Pack Page 51



Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022
Area was first designated in 1977. This area of land is in military use (some areas of hardstanding for

vehicle storage), is not publicly accessible and is well screened from the tow path by an established
tree belt.

Woodland to the north of Canal between the A325 Farnborough Road and Queens Avenue

A.9 This area is designated as being part of the Aldershot Military Conservation Area. Therefore, it was
removed from the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area as there are no additional benefits to including
the land within two conservation areas.

Land between the canal and Gold Lane

A.10 This narrow tree belt forms part of the Wellesley Outline Planning consent and part of this land will be
used for a replacement vehicle bridge and to provide a car park for the allotments to be provided to
the east of Gold Lane.

39
Pack Page 52



N

\

'Basingstoke Canal Conservation Aréa

e Bungalow \ X

¢ ".) The Quays

am West = \

bmshot Farm vV et Uniion’es. L

: —=Heathr7 St \
Farnborough

Street

Southwood

Farnborough

Rafborough

AL ?f:'frf‘“l - o South JL\
Inisigiona ; Farnborough}
‘v

Pystock Gate

North'Camp

Miles Hi \ Watts'
{ 2 Common

Eelmoor
Hill East

Centre Hill ’ "-i; The Bungalow

W/ ' Montgomery
Lines

old Lodge

Round Hill

”
/North(Town
The Royal - J

8 Z Pavilion AlderShOt

Bourley Hill &8 AUEISIES L e ,
Skirmishing #/
il ;'a.lcersl*ot

Hungry
Hill :
Long Bottom e

Heath Ehd

Weybourne J D Conservation Area Boundaﬁack Pa%e 5:

2,000 Metres Areas removed from Conservation Area in 2022

I "" Ba

‘ Springfield




Pack Page 54



APPENDIX 2

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Character
Appraisal and Management Plan

Consultation Statement

Persons consulted as part of the Consultation

The draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan was subject
to six weeks’ public consultation between the 15t November 2021 and the 13™ December
2021. Copies of the draft document were made available to view at the following locations
during opening hours:

e Rushmoor Borough Council Offices
e Aldershot Library
e Farnborough Library

The documents were promoted via a media release (Appendix 2). The consultation was also
advertised extensively on the Council’s website (Appendix 7 - 9) and using Social Media
(Appendix 4 - 6). The Council’s Facebook page has 11,402 follows, cumulatively the Facebook
posts received 20 comments, and were shared 17 shares.

Representations were invited via email or via post.

Consultation emails

The Council notified all those registered on the Rushmoor Local Plan consultation database.
The database covers a wide range of stakeholders including local residents, businesses,
statutory bodies such as Historic England and civic groups. In total, there are approximately
155 contacts on the database, and all were contacted via email requesting their comments
on the documents (Appendix 1).

A newsletter (Appendix 3) was sent to approx. 250 people that had signed up to be informed
of any Council consultation, as well as to the 6,000 people who had requested to be sent the
general Councils newsletter.

Documents available on the Council’s website

Copies of the draft documents were made available to view and/or download on the Council’s
website at https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/planningpolicyconsultations

Consultation events

Two digital consultation events were carried out on the 16™ and 17" November 2021. These
events were publicised on the Council website as well as on the leaflets and press releases.
Attendees were able to call the office to book a time slot or enter the event via a Microsoft
Teams link on the Rushmoor Borough Council Website. We received approximately 30
telephone calls during the consultation period with people asking questions about the

1
Pack Page 55


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/planningpolicyconsultations

consultation documents and their implications. The majority of people contacting us
requested to be signed up for the digital drop in events. The estimated attendance for the
two digital events was 25 people.

An in person drop in event was also arranged at the Council Offices for the 19t November,
however this was principally advertised for consultees who were unable to attend the digital
events. The Council Offices are easily accessible via public transport and is within Farnborough
Town Centre. For the drop in event several display boards were available for the public to
view (Appendix 10) which provided summary information on the documents which were
being consulted upon Council officers were also available to answer any questions (Appendix
11). The public were encouraged to complete the supplied feedback form, or to email to
policy email address with any comments. The estimated attendance for the in person drop in
events was 10 people, this reflects the willingness of the public to engage with the
consultation digitally and over the phone.

From the 19" November 2021 display boards (Appendix 10) that provided a summary
information of the consultation, were exhibited in the reception of the Council Offices.

Summary of the main issues raised and officer responses

We received 10 responses relating to the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and
Management Plan with most of the comments received focusing on the proposed boundary
changes (i.e. areas to be removed from the conservation area).

Four of the responses were acknowledgements to the consultation and did not provide any
feedback on the content of the draft appraisal or management plan. One of the responses
was in support of the proposals.

Issues identified:

1. Concerns that the review process is removing areas from the conservation area

It is a commitment within the Rushmoor Local Plan (2019) to review the borough’s
Conservation Areas. Conservation areas are a heritage designation guided by the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 that requires Local planning authorities to
identify areas of special architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of
which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.

The section of the Basingstoke Canal Conservation area that lies within Rushmoor has not
been reviewed since designation in 1977.

We have reviewed the conservation area and produced a character appraisal which identifies
some areas could be removed from the conservation area because they do not demonstrate
special architectural or historic interest. National Planning Policy is clear that the concept of
conservation should not be devalued through the designation of areas that lack special
interest.

2. Concern that development has been allowed within the conservation area which
now requires boundaries to be amended

2
Pack Page 56



There has been very limited development within or adjoining the Basingstoke canal
conservation area since it was first designated in 1977. Some development has taken place
on operational military land that does not satisfy the requirement of being of special or
architectural interest and is therefore being removed from the conservation area.

The purpose of conservation areas designation is not to prevent development. Change is
inevitable but as planning authority we seek to manage change in a way that conserves and
enhances the character and appearance of historic areas.

The preparation of a character appraisal provided information on the significance of the area
and identifies threats to its special architectural or historic interest. The character appraisal
will upon adoption be a material consideration in decision making.

3. Concerns about the loss of woodlands / ancient woodlands

Biodiversity and ecology assets in the borough are protected under separate legislation and
by both national and local planning policies. The majority of the areas being removed from
the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area are designated as Suitable Alternative Natural Green
Space (SANG) which is secured in perpetuity and is managed by the Land Trust.

Next Steps

Following consideration of the comments received (Appendix 12) it is proposed that the
Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan be presented to the
Councils Cabinet for adoption with the boundaries remaining unchanged from those set out
in the consultation draft.

Pack Page 57



Appendix 1- Email to Consultees

Rushmoor Borough Council Conservation Area Consultations - Statutory Consultees

Rushmoor Council Planning Policy
RC To Rushmoor Council Planning Policy

@‘r’ou forwarded this message on 17/11/2021 09:59,
Dear 5ir / Madam,
We are contacting you as you have previously asked to be notified of planning policy and heritage consultations undertaken by Rushmoor Borough Council.
The Council is currently consulting on the following heritage documents for a period of six weeks:
# Draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraiszl and Management Plan
» Draft Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
& Draft Farnborough Street Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
* Draft 5t Michaels Abbey Conservation Area Appraisal
You can view the decuments and find more information online at https:/f'www.rushmoor.gov.uk/planningpolicyconsultations

The closing date for receipt of comments is Monday 13 December 2021.

To respond please email planningpolicy@ rushmoor gov.uk or write to us at the following address:

Planning Policy and Conservation
Rushmoor Borough Council
Council Offices

Farnborough Road

Farnborough

Hampshire

GU14 7iU

Yours faithfully,

The Planning Policy and Conservation Team

Planning Policy and Conservation Team
Planning Policy and Conservation Team| Rushmoor Borough Council | Council Offices | Farnborough Road | Farnborough | Hampshire | GU14 7JU

DDi: 01252 398787 | =:planningpolicy@rushmeoor.gov.uk | wi weiw.rushmoor.gov.uk

o4 Pleaszs consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

4
Pack Page 58



Appendix 2— Media Release

lome ¢ Mews ¢ Novemoer 2021 ¢ Councll sseks views on conesrvatlion arsas

ou are in News

Movember 2021

Imiportant step forward for new
visitor centre

Union ¥ard regensration scheme
construction undsar way

App puts Aldershot on the map

Christmas is corning to Aldershot
and Farnborough

Council seeks views on
conservation areas

Media release - issued 04 Nov 2021

Council seeks views on conservation
areas

Local residents are being asked to give their views on proposed changes
to four conservation areas in Aldershot and Farnborough.

In the second phase of a major project, Rushmoor Borough Council is undentaking a
rewiew of more consenvation areas and has now lsunched a consulation to hear what

people think of the plans.

The reviews are part of the council's overall 3im 1o protect and imorove the hentage

and character of Aldershot and Farnborowgh and build on the policies in the Rushmoor

Locs] Plan.

In the Manor Park and Famboerough Hill conssrvation areas, the council is progesing
to change the boundaries. This would remove areas that do not reflect, or add to, the
historic character of the area. Owersll, the consenvation areas would be smaller, but
more focused.

The proposed amendments to the Basingstoke Canal conservation area takes acocount

of the changes 1o the Aldershot Garrison and the designation of parts of the ane3 as
Suitsble Alternative Matural Green Space [SANG).

The council is also proposing to de-designate the 5t Michaels Abbey conservation
ared as 3 significant number of buildings within the conservation area are modermn and
the core heritages buildings, and their ssttings such as 5t Michass Abbey and 5t
Peters School are Mationally Listed, which provides greater protection than
conservation area designation.

A= well as finding out more and making comments on our Conssrvation ares
reviews page, residents will also be able to find out more about the proposals at four
wirtual drop-in sessions. These will be for:

5t Michael's Abbey and Farnborough Hill on Tuesday 16 November
Basingstoke Canal and Manor Park on Wednesday 17 Movember

Anyone who would like to attend one of the sessions should ema
planningpolicy@rushmaoor.govuk.

Anyons unable to sttend should contact the planning policy team on 01252 388787, so

they can maks alternative arrangernents.

Rushmaoor Borough Council's Cabinet member for Flanning and Economy, Councallor
Marina Munre, said: "Our conservation areas play an imgoiant role in maintaining the
heritage and character of our towns. & lot has changed since we |38t reviewsd tham,
Given the significance of these areas, we hope that residents will take the time to look
at the proposals in the consultations and give their views so we can fully take account
of local opinions.”

The consultstions are available on our Conservation area reviews papge until Spm on
Maondsy 12 December.

Related links

p Conservation area reviews

p Current consultations

Communications
communications{Brushmoor.gov.uk
Tel: 01252 393744
b View full details

Share this page

Ei Facebook

t Tumbir

Pack Page 59



09 abed »oed

Appendix 3— Newsletter notification

RUSHMOOR

Remembrance
Sunday 2021
14 November

Joint civic/military services
in Aldershot and Farnborough

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/remembrancesunday

Remembrance Sunday

To mark Rememorance Sunday, there are & number of fink civic and millary serices tasing place an Sunday 14 Nowemiber aorcss Aldershal and Famibaugh,

All e SErVIcES are open to the pubic and further nformation i svalktie on he BRmeiranes SUnday Page an our wehsbe:

Food waste collections update and thanks

s aready our tird week of food waste colactions and we'd lke 10 say another by thank you for your recycing eforts sa far

nour second wesk, we oolecied @ massive B4 tonnes of iood washe for recyoling. Al the wasie has been sent i an anaerobic digestion daclity near Basingsioke, where i b being broken dosm i generabe renswable enengy and a digestabe which Is used as a nuidenéch e lser
f yoitve Nl Bean LSIng your caddies yet, 'S not 10 1aie fo S - o can use your weekly ooleclion 10 necyche all types of 1000 waste. I you nesd help getting stamed, we'e created a Short videg ¥ou can alsa find delals on the (00 SRSl recyoing pagE an our wehsbe.

Vourr hlack outdoor caddy needs 1o be cut by Tam on the day of oolkeotion nd i realy halps our crews i you can leave B in @ vishbie place. Food waste s emptied separaiely b your othisr bing and 1he 1eam can be oul working unel 4pm, 50 0 may be colected at @ diferant time.

To check your colleciion calendar go o the o colieciions page on our websie.

Conservation areas - give Us your views

e would ke your views on some propased changes B four conserdaiion areas in Aldershol and Farnborough.

The rewlEws. ane part af our ongeems work o probsct and improse the hantage and character of Akkershol and Farnbanousgh and hulid on the polickes in e Rushmoor Loosd Plan. Th oonservation antas ane 51 Michas's Abbey, Fambarmnugh HIL Manor Park in Sdersnat and the Basingstoie Canal.

A5 il @5 T onine consuation, you can ke Dart in oo of $our Ml drop-n sessions on 16 and 17 November. To Snd ot more and (o take pan in the consutation, plase go i e Lonstnalion & 06 MEVEws Page On our webshe. You wil find detalls of how b B poe in the dropn Sessions on i indivdual Consenation ans apsmisal and
management plan pages

The closing dabe is Monday 13 Decensber,

Festive dates for your diary

Chiisimas s just arcund fhe comer and we have a number of Chrisimas. events coming up o help get fwe fesivEes siarbed.

Join Us for the Aisershol Chits!mes Craser and Chrstmas (gt swikch-an on Saiurday 20 Novembar fros misday b 5.450m 0 AKIETshot (own cendne. Thirs wil bi festhe stalls 10 browse, Santa's 9o, @ nathity fams, noes, oros skis, fce painting, Ive perlomiances, brass bands and more. This year, thie big senchon wil b pace in



Appendix 4 —=Social Media Post — 8 November

Rushmoor Borough Council
‘ 8 November 2021 -
We are inviting local residents to give their views on some proposed
changes to four conservation areas in Aldershot and Farnborough.
The reviews are part of our long-term work to protect and improve the
heritage and character of Aldershot and Farnborough and build on the
policies in the Rushmoor Local Plan.
The conservation areas are St Michael’s Abbey, Farnborough Hill. Manor
Park in Aldershot and the Basingstoke Canal.
As well as the online consultation, residents will ... See more

Protecting and improving
our local heritage

We want your views

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationreviews

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

(&1 F 15 comments 7 shares

Pack Page 61



Appendix 5 — Social Media Post — 18 November
Rushmoor Borough Council

‘ 18 November 2021 - &
If you were unable to attend the online sessions on our conservation area
consultation, we will be holding a drop-in event at the council offices
between 10am and 5pm tomorrow (19 November).
The conservation areas are St Michael’s Abbey, Farnborough Hill, Manor
Park in Aldershot and the Basingstoke Canal.
If you would like to attend, please call us on 01252 398787 or email
planningpolicy@rushmoor.gov.uk to book a place as our offices are open for
pre-booked appointments only.
Visitors will be able to look at information boards and the relevant draft
documents and talk to planning officers.

Please could anyone attending the drop in sessions to wear a face covering
and remain socially distanced during their visit. Thank you.

7O
m
u s
Protecting and improving

our local heritage
We want your views

RUSH MOOR

BOROUGH COUNCII

Q 5 4 shares

8
Pack Page 62



Appendix 6 — Social Media Post — 9 December

Rushmoor Borough Council
' 9 December 2021 at 00:11 - §
There's still time to give your views on some proposed changes to four
conservation areas in Aldershot and Farnborough.
The conservation areas are St Michael's Abbey, Farnborough Hill, Manor
Park in Aldershot and the Basingstoke Canal.
The consultation ends next Monday, December 13.
The reviews are part of our long-term work to protect and improve the
heritage and character of Aldershot and Farnborough and build on the
policies in the Rushmoor Local Plan.
For more information and to take part in the online consultation please go to
www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationreviews

Protecting and improving
our local heritage

We want your views

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationreviews

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCII

Pack Page 63



Appendix 7 — Website — main consultation page

Coronawirus (COVID-19) - The latest information about our services, government advice and where to get help.

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Skip ba main conberd | Languages | Halp using this site | Comtact s

Lk it onling

oping our plarning policies = Plann ) palicy ConSulaoes w Concearvation arsa reviewe

“You ane in Planning

Pianning policies

The Rushmoar Local Plan

Supplementary planning
documents and advics nales

Get Involved In developing our
planning policles

Statenent ol Community
Invabvemient
Planning policy consultations
Keep up (o date with the lsest
news an planning palicy
Planning poligations and the

Community Infrastruciure Lewvy

Mational, regional and county
planning palicy documents

Neighbourhoad planning

Farmer kocal plans and policies

Conservation area reviews

We are proposing to make a number of changes to Basingstoke Canal,
Famborough Hill, Manor Park and 5t Michael's Abbey conservation areas.

Draft Bazingetoke Canal
Character Appraleal and
Managament Pian [10M]

Draft Fambaorough HIll Charactar
Appraleal and Managament Flan
[EMb]

Draft Manor Park Character
Appralsal and Managament Plan
[10MA]

Draft 5t Michael's Abbay
Character Appraleal [Fhb]

Canzeryalion areas ane defined in law 2z "an areas of specal srchibectussl ar histonc

nieresl the o of which it i ¢ sy arid enhance’. We

o defin g and TEVIRWING COMSETRion 2 1 D Doemea .

Az zal oul in he The

el Plan (2019, we are carrying out a =]

hiensny n anmes, This is pan of our oweral

TV

ey af the borougn’=s

abegy ta prolect and improve the herilage of the borough and ils cha -

W are curently consult ai=pep thez i owang draft documents as part of the secand

} Help with PDF documants

Related links

¥ Conearvation araas

Planning pollcy

planningpobcyBreshmoor. gowuk
Ted: 01252 398
¥ Wiew Tull detalls

Share this page

Ei Facebook
W Twitter
[ Link=din
5 Reddit

t Tumbir

ale thal all of the

of awr Cre

an Area Review Programme. Ple

OO TS progoss .|':II'\'._||Z"5 o conservabon area boundares:

« Draft Basingstoke Canal Conmservalion Area Appraisal and Manasgement Plan

« Drafi Fa ot

«  Drafl Manc

t Michaied's

Thie doourm

Cve

e Dloour

n Rushmoor have been designaled, which indudes the legisialive and planning policy

framework as wel

the geographic and historic setting of the borough

You can =ubmil your feedbsck and com

aiing
e address below

p ngpalicyiErushmoor.gavuk or by post to

Planning Paolicy,
Ru

Counc

moar Borowgh Counil,

Office

Farnbarough Raad,

Farnbarough

rided our virteal droprin sessions on te 16 and 17 November

1t at the Caunci Offices an the 19 November. You view Lhe

and the drop-in

the Inks below:

This comsultation closes on 13 December at Spm.

Privacy notice

R

Boul the information you send Lo ws and whal we will wse it for in our prisecy

10
Pack Page 64



Appendix 8— Website — Basingstoke Canal consultation page (pre consultation events)

Coronavirus (COVID-18) - The Latest information about our services, government advice and where to get help.

Sépomah ortert | Langeges | Help waingthis we | Contact e

RUSH \(00)14

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Consultation on the draft Basingstoke
Canal Character Appraisal and

Related docur te

e Management Plan

Planning policios “* Draf Basingstoke Canal

Characier Appralssl and

T DT e Give your view on the proposed boundary changes and charactsr Managsmant Fian [10ME)
appraisal and management plan e 2

Sugplermentary planning P MOlp W POF dosumentt

documents and advice rotes Background

P ep— e T

planning poticies

» Consarvaton areas

» Locaily listed bundings

ety b NaBiONly Eatec DuSTINGS

» Carrying cut work to a Bated
DUNGING Of In & Contervalion arsa

» The Rushmeor Locatl Plan

Planning ctiigations ard the

Conyrursty Inbusructire m
Netored, regorsd and coonty

planreng policy docureres o o 1
Neghbouhoos glarning WL 0122

» View Tull Ostane

Rrd copes of Ihe documest are avaladie Lo vwew al Share this page

Fonmes ol phans and paices

o Rusherexr Borough Coresl Ofices K] Facedook
. cugh Libvary o Twittsr
- ot Lbrary

B Uewsain
Our pfices are csrently open by ponbinent only, 20 pletse chack before you S Reaat
werd t Tumbir

You can st your foedbock and coments by emsling
. oy R TTOg G 4k OF Dy DOt 1D e a0iTess e Ow
== GRS

Farntorough Roed

amborouon

s corsulaton doses on 13 Dacember at Spm

11
Pack Page 65



Appendix 9— Website — Basingatoke Canal consultation page (post consultation events)

Coronavines (COVID-18) - The lrbect Informetion abhout our cenvioas, govemmant sdvics and wiers to get haip

USHMOOR

CRROFUGH COUNCIL

Heairm Forer Coendl

M I LA L T
T T T o —

Yow @re N Mssnsg

I"isnreng polices

| Huabwran Locsd | a0

Suppamenlary plenneg

Dot 1 b

Cat myoivsd n derso@Eng owr

permung elces

Siatmman! of Commundy
Imwcdvmrman |
I"lsnmng policy consu Betons

Koz o b e with Lhea Labanl
TEWE O RN

1"y chigsleds o e
Comrroniby Inloss lraciors Laep

hsbe, reonnl s coand
dorumsands

pannEy poicy

hsghteates pEnnng

o ucsl plaree W gl

12
Pack Page 66

Errvircrmanl Manning

ety iy bl | Larypsacem | by ueing B oale | Conbee

Housing aed  Commonily snd Bl ness snd Trwrwsl e Haallh ard Esitiva Al
Benelis Lasluvira [ Parking Support Hushmooe

i B Py Cnealslons ¢ DI wEi) M

Consultation on the draft Basingstoke
Canal Character Appraisal and
Management Plan

B
= e Seangacion CEne

T Charecier Apprwws | snd

Give your viaw on the propacad boundary ohangst and chamoter Varmperact 'n | 18D

sppralcal and management plan.
[ Haip wits MOF doourmests

Baskgraund
| Hirgd ks Umred| s noens wislsrams nnieg rom Exergs bbs n ampshics m
ot Ve b 15 = Hummigs ok Cur P 5
mled T

B Cenesryeban e

S Sy Loy Lo ¥ Locslb e buikdings
¢ Kutenslly hetsd buodings

¥ Curmyng cut work to e sk
building or n & comesrssbon S

¥ | fumabmoor Locsl Men

A Tk ATl | I 1 LI
el mchilciursl e
»

il e I"'snreng poicy

Imi- (1253

TaRraae b Ve full debats

Kl Fecmicak

o Iwrear

[ T —
»  Aldershul Litoery [ Lnksdin

o Hmddid
s wrs corman By opsn by sppenimen| only, s pleess check, bl one o § lumki

1 czmsolslnn Soesis un 13 UDscemibar st Zpm



Appendix 10— Banners

Conservation area
reviews

INTRODUCTION

As set out in the Rushmeor Locol Plan
(20190, we ore commitiad to corrying
out a comprahansive reviow of tha
brroughis eight conservotion oreas.

the borowgh and its choroctes. We wont
o moka sure that our consarvotion
areos ore still maeoningful and protect
their choracter and heritapa for futue:
genenations.

: = -
b f._
B

1 OVERVIEW DOOUMENT

The published Conservation Arao
Crarview document: comtains
informaoticn on the logisiction which
protects conservotion oreas. it olso
praovides some comtaxt for the area
which should te corsidered olongside
the individual appraisol documeants.

1. APPRAISAL

A Conservotion Areo Appraisal
identifies why the area is designated
and identifies whot features ore
impestant to protect and enhance

The oppraisal defines what is positive
and nagathiea about the conservotion
arag, and whara thore are opportunitios
for beneficial chaonge.

A Conservoticn Areo Appeaiscl

provides a fromawork for developmant
managament decisions and con be usad
as owidence to rafuse opplicotions which
thractan the charocter of the orec.

An odopted Conservotion Area Appraisal
i a "matarial consideration” in deaisian
making and aims %o raise the stondards
of davelopment.

A MANAGEMENT PLAM

A Conservotion Arec Maragament Plan
is bosed on the approisal of the orea.
[t sats out the future opproach to
safeguarding the orchitectural ond
histaric charactar. t also identifies
opportunities for enhancament.

Protecting and improving
our local heritage
We want your views

RESHMORR

13

Basingstoke Canal
conservation area

The Basingstoke Conal area was dosig

County Council The section of the
been reviowsd since.

T
) &

* A ) =
7 =
FOUR KEY CHARACTER AREAS + Built form ond detois

- Proposed boundary omendments

As part of the currant raview of the
Basingstoke Canal consarvation area,
wo analysed its charocter and identified  CONSULTATION PROPOSALS
four key areas within it

Boundary chaonges
W have therafore divided the
conservation arca into four sub-category  Whan we reviewed the conservotion aren,
aracs that reflect thoir different it bacame clear that ports of it do not
charactaristics: roflact its historic choracter andfor
benefit from othar forms of protection
such os dasignation as Suitabla
Alternative Notural Greenspace.

+ Oid Ively Road to Ecimoor Bridge
« Eclmoor Bridge to Farnborough Road
Bridga

The appr
that the boundary for the conservation

« Farnborough Rood Bridge to
Governmant Rood area is changed, o0 it would bacome
« Gaverremant Rood to the Agueduct smaller, but more focused

For gach of these oreas, wa have
considered the following to identify
the historic charocteristics that we
wont to protoct:

Currantly wa ore notified of works to
trocs within @ consarvotion orog, our
trec officer has boan informed of the
suggested oltarations to the boundary.

- Vicws
~ Public recim

Protecting and improving
our local heritage
We want your views

RUSHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Pack Page 67



89 abed oed

Appendix 11- Photograph of Consultation Event

14



69 abed Yoed

Appendix 12— Summary of comments received on the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan and
the Councils response

Respondent Response Summary Officer Comment
Dustin Lees - Thank you for consulting Surrey County Council as the Noted.

Surrey County Minerals and Waste Planning Authority (MWPA) about the

Council MWPA relevant appraisals and management plans. The MWPA has no

comments to make.

Farihah We recognise that Basingstoke Canal is an important Support noted.
Choudhury, Public ' recreational asset for the local community, noting that The
Health Hampshire = Canalside including the tow path is used for leisure and

recreation as a route for cycling, walking, pleasure boats,

canoeing and angling, providing an attractive green route

avoiding busy roads.

It notably forms part of the Rushmoor Parkrun route which is
a popular event having recently reached its 17th anniversary.
Hence, having a level of protection through heightened
conservation status, which necessitates management and
maintaining the site is beneficial for the health and wellbeing
of those with proximity to the route.

Judith Johnson, Due to limited capacity within the Thames Sustainable Places Noted.
Environmental team we are unable to consider these documents.

Agency

Marie-Anne On behalf of the Land Trust, who oversee the management of Noted.
Phillips, Land Wellesley Woodlands we don't see any problem with your

Trust proposals to alter the boundaries to the Basingstoke Canal

Conservation Area.

15



0/ abed »oed

Sharon Jenkins,
Natural England

Robert Lloyd-

Sweet, Historic
England

16

The SANG designation and other SINC/SSSI designations
remain in place. The flashes remain within the conservation
area and it allows for the bridge upgrade works to happen.

Natural England does not have any specific comments on this
draft Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan.

Historic England recognise that reviewing the conservation
area boundaries is an important part of the Council's statutory
duty and helps to ensure both that areas that are deserving of
protection and enhancement are appropriately identified and
defined and that unnecessary burdens are not applied to
areas that do not merit protection.

| am duty bound to restate that whilst Historic England may
provide advice on the process and considerations to be taken
into account in determining what areas might be considered
as suitable for designation as conservation areas, it is outside
our remit to provide an opinion on what should or not should
not be a conservation area as this is legally identified as the
role of the Local Planning Authority.

With regard to the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area we
see this as a helpfully concise document that helpfully
identifies the changes in character along the course of the
waterway which in many cases are dependent on changes in
its setting. This is similar to the understanding of the character
of other canal conservation areas elsewhere in the country
and we support this approach. With regard to the proposed
boundary changes we would suggest some matters for
consideration in deciding these.

Noted.

Noted

Noted

Noted



T/, abed xoed

We feel consideration should be given to retaining the
woodland in the Wellsley development that lies in the
conservation within its boundary.

We note that it is likely the Basingstoke canal conservation
area would be considered to gain greater significance from its
association with the Aldershot barracks than vice versa. We
have, nevertheless noted elsewhere that where two
conservation areas overlap the impact of the same
development may in fact be considered to have a different
impact on each area and that, as such the overlap has a
meaning full impact on decision making.

We would be pleased to see the woodland to the north of
Canal between the A325 Farnborough Road and Queens
Avenue remain within the conservation area if this contributes
positively to the special interest and character or appearance
of the Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area.

The conservation area boundary that was defined in 1977
includes a number of areas of land which have subsequently been
secured as Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANG). The
management of the SANGs are a legal requirement and an
Ecological Management Plan was approved by the Council. We do
not consider that it is necessary for these areas to be retained
with the conservation area when the land in question is managed
and the role / function of these areas has changed.

The Queens Avenue Bridge will be located within two
conservation areas, notably the Aldershot Military Conservation
Area which in effect crossed over the bridge and the Basingstoke
Canal Conservation Area that passes under the bridge.

As noted in the consultation document the area of woodland in
guestion is located within the Aldershot Military Conservation
Area. We do not consider that the woodland justifies double
designation.

Alan Firman

17

Plans for the Basingstoke Canal appear fine. It should be left
alone or improved.

Noted



¢/ abed oed

Chris Morgan

Elaine Grieveson

18

Well, | note with interest that all of the proposals include a
reduction. To me this means you and or your predecessors
have failed. Surely the idea of having conservation areas is to
protect what is there, in reality these areas should grow as
time passes and more properties and sites fall into the historic
bracket.

| can’t believe that there is any significant cost involved other
than what | imagine was a very costly exercise to create these
reports.

The Council should not be altering any boundaries involving a
Conservation Area unless you are extending it. These areas are
supposed to be protected and once you start 'making them
smaller' to refine your help/work to keep them, what's to stop
you, slowly edging away at the boundaries until the area
doesn't exist at all.

It is a commitment within the Rushmoor Local Plan (2019) to
review the borough’s Conservation Areas.

Conservation areas are a heritage designation. The Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires Local
planning authorities to identify areas of special architectural or
historic interest, the character or appearance of which is desirable
to preserve and enhance.

Conservation areas should be supported by conservation area
appraisals in order to justify their designation.

Historic England acknowledge that change in conservation areas is
inevitable, and often beneficial. The conservation area appraisal
and management plan identifies ways to manage change in a way
that conserves and enhances the conservation areas character
and appearance.

Proposals for development in conservation areas that require
planning consent will be determined in accordance with the Local
Plan unless there are material considerations that indicate
otherwise.

It is a commitment within the Rushmoor Local Plan (2019) to
review the borough’s Conservation Areas. Conservation areas are
a heritage designation the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance. Conservation areas should be
supported by conservation area appraisals in order to justify their
designation. National Planning Policy is clear that the concept of
conservation should not be devalued through the designation of
areas that lack special interest.



¢ ) abed Yoed

Sean Bissett-
Powell

19

Conservation Areas are supposed to be Protected and
Managed. This country is losing far too much Woodlands,
along with Ancient Woodlands that can NEVER ever be
replaced, the biodiversity of an Ancient Woodland is more
than just trees, it's about the untouched soil that goes down
to the core.

Concerns raised about the management of Southwood
Country Park.

One of the repeated reasons quoted for removing sections of
Conservation Area is the presence of modern developments
which do not match conservation requirements.

*  What went wrong with the planning system that consent
was granted to modern developments within conservation
areas if they would not meet conservation requirements?

Biodiversity and ecology assets in the borough are protected
under separate legislation and by both national and local planning
policies. The majority of the areas being removed from the
Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area are designated as Suitable
Alternative Natural Green Space (SANG) which is secured in
perpetuity and is managed by the Land Trust.

An interim management plan for Southwood Country Park
Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space has been prepared and
can be accessed on our website:
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/southwoodcountrypark

There has been very limited development within or adjoining the
Basingstoke Canal conservation area. Some development has
taken place on operational military land which did not require
planning permission.

The purpose of conservation areas designation is not to prevent
development. Change is inevitable but as planning authority we
seek to manage change in a way that conserves and enhances the
character and appearance of historic areas. It is important to note
that some forms of development do not require planning
permission, these are known as permitted development rights.
The National Planning Policy Framework requires that Local
planning authorities should look for opportunities for new
development within conservation areas ‘to enhance or better
reveal their significance’


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/southwoodcountrypark

i/ abed xoed

20

* Does the fact that they gained permission indicate either
that Conservation Areas actually offer no protection, or
that the planning permissions were incorrectly granted?

*  Will the Council be reviewing these past planning
permissions to learn lessons going forward, identify why
they were granted and determine whether any
malfeasance occurred in the process

* What can be done so that future planning permissions will
be scrutinised more closely with regard to conservation
characteristics, in order to prevent developers “salami
slicing” the remaining conservation areas only for them to
be eliminated in a few years’ time during the next review?

Will open spaces removed from conservation areas because
they are covered by other schemes will still benefit from
equivalent levels of protection, and whether the alternative
schemes have been reviewed to determine that they, in turn,
are not about to be removed.

As noted above some development in or adjoining conservation
areas that could be considered detrimental to their character and
appearance do not require planning permission.

Planning applications are determined in accordance with the
development plan (Rushmoor Local Plan) unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. As noted above some forms of
development (permitted development) do not require planning
permission.

The preparation of a character appraisal helps to to understand
the significance of the area and identify threats to its special
architectural or historic interest. The character appraisal will upon
adoption be a material consideration in decision making.

Any environmental designations in place (such as designation as a
Site of Special Scientific Interest) are managed through a different
process. The protection offered by other designations that apply
are not impacted by the conservation area review process.



APPENDIX 3

o —

USHMOOR March 2022

BOROUGH COUNCIL




Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

Table of Contents

R 13 o o [¥ Tt T N 3
OVErVIEW DOCUMENT.....iiiiiiiiiii it 3
Appraisal and Management Plan ........oooviiieiiiiiiie et 3
SUD-CharaCter aPPraiSals .....ccuuiie i e s e e e raee s 3

2. An Overview of Manor Park Conservation Area........ccccccceeeeiciiiiiinnnnnnnsssinnnnnenessnsssnn, 5
DESIZNAtiON HISTOIY c.eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit ettt ee et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesesesesnnene 5
LOCATION L.ttt e e 5
Area DeVEIOPMENT ..o e e e e e e e aaaaeeas 5

3. Sub Area 1 — Manor Park and Church Lane East...........ccceeuuuuiiiiiiiiiieennniiiciiinieeeeenennnnn. 10
AATEQ SUIMMIAIY c.etititiietitetttttttteeteteeeeeeeee et eeeee et ee et eeatatataeaeetaeaeeesaaeetseeeseseeesesesssnnnsnsnsnsnnes 10
Streetscape and DOUNAIIES ....ciiiiiiiie i e e s e e e s neees 10
Open Spaces, Parks, Gardens and TrEeS .....ccuuvieeecviireieiieeceriree e e e e e e e e e saaeee s 11
Building form and detail (ArchiteCture) .......ooooouieee i 11
ATLEIAtIONS ..t st sne e 12

4. Sub Area 2 — Church Hill, Village Green and High Street......cc.cccceeiriuiiiiiciinciiieecninnnnnes 16
ATCA SUNMIMIAIY ..iiiiieiiiiiiieee et e etettitise s e e e e eteettai e s e eeeeeeaaessaassseeessenssssssssseseesssesssnnssseseesennssnnn 16
Streetscape and DOUNANIES ....cccoi i e e e e e e erae e 16
Open Spaces, Parks, Gardens and TrEES .......cccvveeeeeieiieiiiireeeee e eeeecrree e e e e eeerrrreeeeee e 16
Building form and detail (Archit@CtUIE) ......ueeeieeiiiiiiiiieeiei e 16
Y 1 =T =1 o o PSR PRTOPRRPRRRPI 17

5. Listed BUildings OF STrUCTUIES ......ccceuciieeiieeniiteencrtenieteeneerennereeseerensessnssesensesssasesssnsessnnens 21

6. Management Plan ...t reneerens s s se e sensssnasesenasesensssennasannnns 22
INEFOTUCTION. ..ceiiiiiiiee et e e e s e e s earee s 22
[CToToTo Iy AN NV =T o 1 oY o TSRS 22
Positive and Negative AttribULES ..o 22
Development Management and potential Article 4 direction........ccccccoveeeevcieeeiiiiienenns 23
Implementation and MONITOTING ......ooieiiiiiiiieie e e e e e e e e e e eeanes 24

Appendix A — Areas removed from Conservation Area .....cc.cccceeeeeeecrennereenncrenneceennecennecnes 25
(0T oY) o X< | I S T=] o [ USSR 26
Eggars Court and Cherry LOAZE ....coei ittt e et e e e e e e e e 26

2

Pack Page 76



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

1. Introduction

Overview Document
1.1 This document should be read alongside the Rushmoor Conservation Area Overview

document! which sets out the context in which conservation areas in Rushmoor have
been designated. This includes the legislative and planning policy framework as well as
the geographic and historic setting of the borough. The Overview document also
explains what you need planning permission for, if your property is within a
conservation area.

1.2 Whilst nationally listed buildings may be included within a conservation area, it is the
combination of factors such as buildings, walls, trees, hedges, open spaces, views and
historic settlement patterns that create the sense of place that gives the area its special
character and appearance. Less tangible senses and experiences, such as noise or
smells, can also play a key part in forming the distinctive character of an area. It is this
character, rather than simply individual buildings, that the conservation area
designation seeks to preserve and enhance.

Appraisal and Management Plan
1.3 This appraisal document sets out the special architectural and historic interest of the

Manor Park Conservation Area, which justifies its designation as a heritage asset, the
character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance. The appraisal
also identifies which features of the conservation area make a positive or negative
contribution to its significance and is accompanied by a management plan which sets
out ways in which homeowners, the local community and the council can manage
change in a way that conserves and enhances the historic area.

1.4 Character appraisals and management plans provide a framework and guide to enable
planning decisions to be made on a site-specific basis, within the context of national
planning policy and the adopted Local Plan.

Sub-character appraisals
1.5 There are two different character within the Manor Park Conservation Area:

e Manor Park and Church Lane East
e Church Hill, Village Green and High Street

1.6 These areas are protected based on their spatial character and architectural qualities,
historical development and the contribution they make to the conservation area.

1 Document available to view at: https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas

3
Pack Page 77


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationareas

‘Manor Park Conservation Area

=
(

N
)

Windmil >

—Mead.Road

Key

& v St Michae D Conservation Area Boundary
gven (Contro Nationally Listed Buildin

Tck Page 78 L] d 9

I 200 Metres |:| Locally Listed Heritage Asset
] ]

1 1 J
StMichael's Church of Engl



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

2. An Overview of Manor Park Conservation Area

Designation History
2.1 The Manor Park Conservation Area was first designated in 1980, and then reviewed in

1989 and 2022.

Location
2.2 Manor Park Conservation Area is located to the South East of Aldershot Town Centre.

Area Development
2.3 The original settlement of Aldershot, developed in the Manor Park area. It is thought

that the land in front of the Manor House, that extends down the hill to the High Street
and pond, is the site of the original medieval village. This part of the Park is an area of
significant archaeological value. The conurbation of Aldershot remained centred around
the Manor Park area until the 1850s, when the arrival of the army and the construction
of the railway resulted in a period of substantial growth, forming the present-day
location of Aldershot’s town centre.

2.4 The 63 acre park has changed little since the 1800’s. The old village of Aldershot dates
back to Anglo-Saxon times, located close to the pond and the origins of the village green.
The buildings fronting the green are already located in the conservation area, dating
from 1880’s and which form part of the historic village location. The buildings along
Church Hill are circa 1930’s and some 1960’s properties. The park was sold to the
Council from its last owner Major Newcome in 1919.

2.5 The current Manor House was built in 1670, by the Tichbourne family. Prior to this there
was an older Manor House. The 1895 maps show the current Manor House and a more
tree detailed landscape.

2.6 Thereis a long path that runs across the park, known as Major’s Walk, this can be seen
on 1881 OS map. This was planted by order of the last owner in residence; Major
Newcome.

2.7 As a result of this pattern of development, it is considered that within Manor Park
Conservation Area there are two areas with distinct character. These are:

e Sub Area 1 — Manor Park and Church Lane East
e Sub Area 2 — Church Hill, Village Green and High Street

2.8 Further detail about the special characteristics of each of these areas is set out in the
following sections.

Pack Page 79



AR g

1881 OS Map showing Manor Park
Conservation Area_

& S VL IR R, VAN T

X Aldershot éo




1911 OS Map showing Manor Park
Conservation A

S
W

f;s";iii'" e

\\\‘\W‘III-"Z-III-H

R NN AN
RTINS 7 S

A
. 0%‘%&{”/
\\\‘\’///

S £

o
N i :
3 g‘ \‘ .,’1' ii

\ ’ \. 4

Y 8
. ;:J

ael’s Church
( Vzﬁagage)

24297 N

" Y279Vicarag

D

‘IT?)
;:‘EAI ershot Lodge
v o
9 ._::.[\\ i ‘293'& ‘rlf}i)
R 471 2052 )

Im Place




I s A= S W=l

1931 OSI\/Ia sbing Manor Park
Conservation Area

\ ',,. ' .

NNV, W YN U W30 Wl 11/ L | I
-~ " SN S /B AT adS F {7 iy N AR

e

]

—

=

5 —

1] M

@&ﬁg
ALDERSHOT#MANOR PARK

2 220
&3,” 20-886
=3

4
4

/ /ALDERSHOTS [ [
s GREEN 2O e

Allotment
Gardens

t
i
=4
i
&
i
'
f
i
i
g
M +
i
i
o
" "
N
W
now
wo
"oy
T
.,3,’.
n 3
HEN
Hiaitl
.
!
-
o,
&u

-éib—-"::::l- ST STTr—— '.

22220 BROCKENNY

22 :u-.:::::;;_::‘_
ccane. AVONDALE g

Allotment
Gardens

306




1961 OS Map showing Manor Park !
Conservat |

) NG - e A -
Ry, .. N - o LT A -y
\ L g 3
//~/"")' P st
: ARG

G

Aldershot Manor Park
i =

77 e Q . R ;;’u‘;}; AVES
///////43 1080 [ :

”m"”"/l/,,:é 2




Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

3. Sub Area 1 — Manor Park and Church Lane East

Area Summary

3.1 This area includes; Manor Park itself and the buildings included along Church Lane East;
War memorial, Heroes’ Shrine, Manor Park House (17th Century), Manor Park Lodge,
St Michael’s Church (12th Century), Manor Place Nursing Home (The Old Vicarage).

Streetscape and boundaries
3.2 This part of the Conservation Area is formed by the junction of the southern end of

Church Hill with Church Lane East, continuing for a short way to the west along the
southern boundary of Manor Park and then including the park itself. The buildings of
St. Michael’s Parish Church and Manor Place Nursing Home characterise this area.

3.3 The other buildings in the area are generally large, detached properties, from around
the turn of the 20™ century, situated in reasonable sized plots, with boundary walls
and hedges. There is a mixed pallet of materials, with the traditional orange brick and
clay plain tile as the original style, from local clay pits. Other materials such as slate
and traditional renders are introduced later, when transport links made them more
accessible.

3.4 The majority of properties have surviving front boundary walls, with either small
paved frontage areas behind, or larger front gardens. Fortunately, very few garden
walls and front garden areas have been lost to the modern requirements of ‘off-street’
parking.

3.5 The northern edge of the parkland provides an important historic boundary, although
the original railings have been replaced, along with the northern and eastern gates, to
formalise the boundary of Manor Park. Earlier park railings exist along some of the
southern boundaries and to the west side of Manor Walk.

3.6 The historic walls to Manor Place and the Church are also particularly important,
within the focal point and street scene at the junction of Church Lane East and Church
Hill.

3.7 The use of unsympathetic paving materials (notably tarmac) within the Park but also
along sections of Church Lane East contrasts with the appropriate pavement detailing
such as that located outside of St Michaels Church.

10
Pack Page 84



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

Open Spaces, Parks, Gardens and Trees
3.8 The most important public open space within the Conservation Area is Manor Park

itself. Thisis a mature, well maintained parkland, with a variety of public facilities, such
as a playground, a skate boarding park, tennis and netball courts. Long distance views
are afforded throughout the parkland area and the elevated position of the southern
end of the area also allows more far reaching views across Aldershot to the west and
north.

3.9 Individual trees, groups of trees and hedgerows form an important part of the character
of the sub area. The parkland area contains the most mature groups and individual tree
specimens, including the Major's Walk, which is a fine avenue of trees running from the
footpath Manor Walk to the High Street gateway of the Park. Outside the park, there
are some important individual tree specimens, which are protected by Tree
Preservation Orders, such as the large oak near the converted St. Michael’s Church Hall.

3.10 All boundary planting to the park is important and together with that within the front
gardens of the surrounding housing, sometimes growing above the original boundary
walls, helps to retain the verdant nature of the conservation area.

Building form and detail (Architecture)
3.11 The church of St Michael’s, although much restored, originates from the 12th century.

The tower, of coursed ironstone and brick, the chancel and the Lady Chapel all date
from around 1380. The church was extended in the 14th century and enlarged again in
1859 with the coming of the army camp and in 1912 a new nave, chancel and north
arcade were added. The Church has a ring of eight bells including one of the oldest bells
in Hampshire, bearing a lion's face and foliate stamp and is dated 1380. The two
soldiers' bells commemorate those who died in the Great War.

3.12 Manor Park itself is a large area of open parkland stretching from the High Street in the
north to Church Lane East in the south, from Church Hill in the east to the playing fields
in the west. Manor Park House stands to the east of this open area, to the north of the
Parish Church of St. Michael’s and with the associated Coach House to the east. The
present Manor House was built in the 17th century by Sir Walter Tichbourne and was
acquired by Aldershot Borough Council in 1919, along with the surrounding parkland. It
is constructed of red brick with occasional blue headers and has traditional vertical
sliding sash windows. The Coach House originally serving the Manor House has been
converted into offices but retains the character of its origins as a service building to the
main house.

3.13 The use of different building materials within the sub area is characterised by the ages
of the buildings. The more historic buildings along Church Lane East or those relating to

11
Pack Page 85



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

the Park are of red brick, with red clay roofing tiles, with some instances of hanging tiles
and some with traditional slate roofs. Manor Park Cottage (a former lodge house)
within the grounds of the park has a nice example of scalloped hanging tiles and makes
an important contribution towards the character and appearance of the conservation
area. Manor Park Cottage and Manor Park Lodge have a historic connection to the park
as demonstrated by the 1881 OS map and may be worthy of designation as locally listed
heritage assets.

3.14 Land along the Manor Park Conservation Areas northwest boundary, which is today,
included into the park, was once the playing fields to Aldershot Manor Girls Secondary
School. The playing fields are located to the west of the main area of Manor Park and
are separated from the parkland by a mature avenue of large specimen trees. The land
is a higher level than the parkland. The western boundary is bordered by the rear
gardens of Edwardian terraced and semi-detached properties, the south and north by
areas of modern development. The playing fields are a relatively open area of grassland,
with no facilities.

Alterations
3.15 Modern buildings and structures have been introduced into the park reflecting its role

as an important recreational space, including a children’s playground, tennis courts and
skate park. Other structures such as the depot for the parks department and public
conveniences are less enhancing built forms.

12
Pack Page 86



Pack Page 87



Sub Area 1—Manor Park and Church Lane East

Image 1—View North West
from pedestrian entrance on
Church

Image 2- Manor Park House

Pack Page 88
Image 3—St Michael’s Church



Sub Area 1—Manor Park and Church Lane East

Image 4—Glebe House,
Church Lane East

Image 5—Manor Park Lodge

Pack Page 89

Image 6—Council Depot



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

4. Sub Area 2 - Church Hill, Village Green and High Street

Area Summary

4.1 The buildings along Church Hill, are mainly 1930’s buildings, with a few 1960’s
structures, these are two storey, set back off the road, by small front gardens. The
buildings along the High Street are earlier in build, ranging from 1881 to 1911 and front
directly onto the road.

Streetscape and boundaries
4.2 The street frontages of these roads are characterised by predominantly Edwardian and

20™ century inter-war housing development, interspersed with late 20™" century
buildings. There are short terraces, semi-detached and detached properties on Church
Hill, which rises to the south, with a general forward building line, long linear rear
gardens and small front gardens with most boundary walls surviving.

4.3 Most of the properties along Church Hill and Ash Road also retain original garden walls,
or sympathetic replacements, which contain the domestic curtilage, creating and
retaining an important linear character to the street scene. The walls are generally
around half a metre in height, thereby not obscuring the properties.

Open Spaces, Parks, Gardens and Trees
4.4 The small green is an important focal point within the conservation area, being at the

junction of High Street, Church Hill and Ash Road. This open space compliments the
eastern entrance to Manor Park opposite, with significant views north along Church Hill,
towards the Green and east along the High Street.

4.5 The Church Hill and Church Lane East junction also forms a focal point within the
conservation area being in an elevated position, with Church Hill falling away to the
north and affords views into the residential areas to the north, east and west.

4.6 There are some important individual trees within the pavement area bordering High
Street which almost form an externalised formal walk to the internal parkland and make
a valuable contribution to the setting of Manor Park.

Building form and detail (Architecture)
4.7 Within the sub area the Victorian, Edwardian and inter-war housing is generally either

red brick with detailing such as stringcourses; windows and corner details picked out in
a buff brick, or alternatively are rendered and painted, with windows, stringcourses and
corner details picked out in a red brick.

16
Pack Page 90



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

4.8 The principal roofing material is slate, and a significant proportion of the buildings retain
the original slate, with fortunately, very few instances of replacement with ‘fake slate’
or concrete roof tiles. Many of these buildings have overhanging eaves, and some of
the Victorian / Edwardian period buildings have decorative barge boarding. Most of the
buildings retain their original chimneystacks and pots.

4.9 The character of Church Hill properties partly comes from the exterior painted colour
scheme and rhythm of the houses, with each house painted an alternative pastel colour.
A good percentage of original features also survive, such as windows, doors, porches
and garden walls, including original slate roofs and chimneystacks.

4.10 The High Street comprises mainly semi-detached properties, some with business
premises on the ground floor with accommodation above. The buildings facades have
altered, however the roofs and chimneys stacks remain.

Alterations
4.11 Within the sub area there is a loss of original window detailing and replacement,

generally, with heavier detailed and unconventional opening PVCu windows. Where the
original window detailing survives, or more appropriate modern window detailing has
been inserted, this leads to a much more balanced facade. This is also true of
replacement of the original front doors to buildings, however, many of the original
porches to the houses survive, some being of quite fine and decorative timberwork.

4.12 Along the High Street, PVCu windows and doors, with varying non-traditional designs,
imbalanced openings, lack of dummy frames, visible trickle vents, has led to the loss of
the traditional fenestration and doors in a number of properties in the area and this
incremental change is detrimental to the overall Victorian and Edwardian character.

4.13 Particularly harmful to the special character and appearance of the sub area is the
painting of some or all of the brickwork facades of the buildings, or the inappropriate
replacement of roof materials and the removal of chimney stacks, or the removal of
boundary walls. There are few cases of entire coverage of paint to facades along the
high Street and instances of unsuitable replacement of the original red clay tiles
or slates and chimney removals, but where this has occurred, there has been an
introduction of modern ‘fake slate’ and heavy inappropriately detailed concrete tiles
and the loss of a feature in the chimney stack.

4.14 No historic shop fronts remain on the High Street within the sub area. Traditional
shopfronts have been replaced by modern shop fronts with large areas of plate glass
and deep oversized fascia’s. This, in conjunction with large projecting signs and
advertisement lettering, which erodes the historic character of the conservation area.

17
Pack Page 91



Pack Page 92



Sub Area 2 — Church Hill and Village Green

Image 7—View North East
down Church Hill

Image 8—Historic Image of
the Village Green
Source: Historic England

Image 9—Vie\ARaﬂ|l’aEa@e193

with historic terraces beyond.



Sub Area 2 — High Street

Image 10—An example of
rendered and original brick
detailing

Pack Page 94



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

5. Listed Buildings or Structures

Name

Link to Historic England

104, Church lane
East

https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-

entry/1339708

Stables to South

https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-

West of No116 entry/1155572
(the Vicarage)
The Vicarage Il https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-

(Manor Place
Nursing Home)

entry/1092628

Church of St
Michael the
Archangel

https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-
entry/1339670

Aldershot Manor
House

https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-
entry/1339707

Stable Block to
South of Aldershot
Manor House

https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-
entry/1092627

Locally Listed Buildings or Structures

Reference Name
LL5019
LL5020
LL5063

Glebe House, 110 Church Lane East
Lych gate to St Michaels Church
Statue of Christ calming the storm

21

Pack Page 95


https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1339708
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1339708
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1155572
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1155572
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1092628
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1092628
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1339670
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1339670
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1339707
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1339707
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1092627
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/list-entry/1092627
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/custommedia/rushmoor/buildingsoflocalimportance/12.00019.BLI.pdf
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/custommedia/rushmoor/buildingsoflocalimportance/12.00020.BLI.pdf
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/custommedia/rushmoor/buildingsoflocalimportance/12.00063.BLI.pdf

Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

6. Management Plan

Introduction
6.1 The management plan outlines a positive strategy to deal with the threats and

opportunities identified in the conservation appraisal.

6.2 The effect of incremental, small-scale change within a conservation area can be
cumulative and negative, particularly when involving the loss of key architectural
features such as chimneys, boundary walls or traditional windows and doors.
Incremental change is particularly difficult to manage as it is not automatically managed
through the planning system and therefore requires good stewardship by the residents
and property owners.

Good Stewardship

6.3 The active management of small-scale change within the conservation area is the
responsibility of the people who live and work in that area. Community led conservation
involves guiding positive change and positive regular maintenance. The owners of
properties situated within a conservation area are caretakers of local heritage for future
generations and commitment to good conservation practice is vital for preserving and
enhancing its character and appearance.

6.4 Historic England, the Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB) and other
heritage bodies publish specialist guidance on the suitable maintenance and repair
methods for different historic buildings and buildings affecting conservation areas.

Positive and Negative Attributes
6.5 The following section details proposed actions to address some of the principal positive

and negative features which were identified as part of the character appraisal of Manor
Park in order to ensure the continued protection and enhancement of the conservation
area.

6.6 The conservation area analysis identified the following positive features which are
important to preserve the character of the area and give it lasting value:

e Many of the trees in the park are of historic importance, to the character and to
the routes through the setting.

e Settings of Nationally and Locally Listed Buildings.

e Traditional windows and doors generally retained.

e Trees and greenery in both the public and private domain.

e Original chimneys and pots on the roofline.

e The boundary wall at the front of the property.

22
Pack Page 96



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

e Private gardens of varying sizes.
e The original decorative features of the property.

6.7 Some aspects of the conservation area are identified as being eroded by negative
changes. The following points were highlighted by the analysis:

e Satellite dishes on front elevations;

e properties where inappropriate renders have been applied and / or inappropriate
painting of exterior walls;

e The replacement of original windows with windows not in a style in keeping with
the property;

e The replacement of original doors with doors not in a style not in keeping with the
property

e No historic shop fronts remain on the High Street within the conservation area.
Modern shop fronts with large areas of plate glass and deep oversized fascia’s;

e Use of tarmac on some pavements within the conservation area;

e Unsympathetic additions within the grounds of Manor Park, including the works
depot.

Development Management and potential Article 4 direction
6.8 Conservation areas have greater planning controls over development due to their

status. This restricts changes to the external appearance of any building within the
conservation area as well as preventing buildings within a conservation area from being
demolished. Further information is available in the Overarching Document and on our
conservation area website. However, permitted development rights allow for certain
types of alterations without the need for planning permission. Some of these alterations
can have an unintended negative impact on the character or appearance of the area.

6.9 Further protection of the key features of the conservation area could be accomplished
by introducing an Article 4 direction. The purpose of serving an Article 4 direction within
or in areas adjacent to a conservation area is to encourage the retention and
good stewardship of high-quality architectural features and to preserve and
enhance its character and appearance.

6.10 An Article 4 direction would enable the Council to protect the character of the
conservation area by requiring property owners to make a planning application for
carrying out certain works. In this Conservation Area, this could cover the following
works to residential properties:

e the replacement, improvement or other alteration of windows or doors;
e the external painting of a house;
e the provision of a hard surface to the front of a property;

23
Pack Page 97



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

e the erection, alteration or removal of a chimney;

e the alteration or change of roofing material;

e the erection, maintenance or alteration of a gate, fence, wall or other boundary
treatment fronting a property.

6.11 It is not the intention of conservation area designation to prevent new development.
Instead, it puts in place a process whereby any proposals are more thoroughly studied
to ensure that the special interest of the conservation area is protected and
opportunities to improve its character are identified. New development can range from
entire new buildings to the introduction of new features, however small, on existing
buildings. New development within the setting of the conservation area (within, views
into and out of) should also be carefully managed as it has the potential to detract from
its character and special interest.

6.12 In summary, any change to the conservation area should seek to:

e Preserve its historical features;

e Enhance, where possible, its special interest;

e Positively contribute to its established character; and
e Be of high quality.

Implementation and Monitoring
6.13 Progress on the implementation of the management plan and the extent to which

planning policies in the Local Plan are complied with or effective in delivering
community aspirations for conservation areas will be monitored through the council’s
authority monitoring report.

6.14 These assessments can then be used to review and, if necessary, modify the planning
policies as part of the 5-year review of the local plan. They can also be used to review
and, if necessary, modify this character appraisal and management plan as part of the
ongoing review of the Borough’s conservation areas.

24
Pack Page 98



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

Appendix A — Areas removed from Conservation Area

Al Conservation areas are intended to recognise areas of historic or architectural
character. The location of the boundary for a conservation area is a qualitative
decision relating to character. It is essential for the protection of conservation areas
that only areas which are a heritage asset are designated so that the concept of
conservation is not devalued (NPPF, Paragraph 191).

A2 During the public consultation on the draft Conservation Area Appraisal and
Management Plan that was undertaken between November 2021 and December
2021, it was proposed to remove two areas from the conservation area, as shown on
the map below. Whilst some objections to the removal of these areas were received,
none provided enough evidence to justify the retention of these areas within the
conservation area. The map below shows the two areas of modern development that
were removed from the conservation area following the adoption of this Character
Appraisal and Management Plan.

A.3  Trees in a conservation area are protected by legislation, so the planning authority
should be notified of any works to a tree. Once areas are removed from a conservation
area, they no longer benefit from this protection.

25
Pack Page 99



Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan — March 2022

Campbell Fields
A4. Campbell Fields is a modern housing development, constructed in the 2000’s on a site

that was previously occupied by the Manor Park Girls School. The development borders
Church Lane East, with the playing fields to the north and the tennis and netball courts
to the west.

A5. As a modern development, Campbell Fields is of good design, the buildings are not
heritage assets and therefore were removed from the Conservation Area. A tree
preservation order is in place within Campbell Fields providing protection for trees
clustered on the land adjoining Church Lane East.

Eggars Court and Cherry Lodge
A6. Eggars Court and Cherry Lodge are modern developments, located to the immediate

north of the playing fields section of land in the park and to the south of Manor Park
Cottage. The site is bounded by hedging and some substantial trees on the Eastern
boundary. The buildings are modern and of circa mid 1970’s architecture.

A7. As a modern development, the buildings are not heritage assets and the design does
not enhance or preserve the character or appearance of the conservation area and
therefore were removed from the conservation area. Five trees within the grounds
benefit from a Tree Preservation Order.

26
Pack Page 100



Campbell Field, Eggars Court & Cherry Lodge

Image A1 —Campbell
Fields Development

Image A2— Tree buffer
between Church Lane East and
properties within Campbell
Fields

Pack Page 101
Image A3—Cherry Lodge



Manor Park Conservation Area

Windmil [

Aldershot

Key

D Conservation Area Boundary

St mng@[ﬁ"&e@h urch Areas removed from Conservation Area in 2022
(dontrolled) Infant




APPENDIX 4

Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal
and Management Plan

Consultation Statement

Persons consulted as part of the Consultation

The draft Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan was subject to six
weeks’ public consultation between the 15f November 2021 and the 13™ December 2021.
Copies of the draft document were made available to view at the following locations during
opening hours:

e Rushmoor Borough Council Offices
e Aldershot Library
e Farnborough Library

The documents were promoted via a media release (Appendix 4). The consultation was also
advertised extensively on the Council’s website (Appendix 9 - 11) and using Social Media
(Appendix 6 - 8). The Council’s Facebook page has 11,402 follows. In addition, letters
(Appendix 2). and information leaflets (Appendix 3). were delivered to properties within the
current Manor Park Conservation Area.

Representations were invited via email or via post.

Consultation emails

The Council notified all those registered on the Rushmoor Local Plan consultation database.
The database covers a wide range of stakeholders including local residents, businesses,
statutory bodies such as Historic England and civic groups. In total, there are approximately
155 contacts on the database, and all were contacted via email requesting their comments
on the documents (Appendix 1).

A newsletter (Appendix 5) was sent to approx. 250 people that had signed up to be informed
of any Council consultation, as well as to the 6000 people who had requested to be sent the
general Councils newsletter.

Documents available on the Council’s website

Copies of the draft documents were made available to view and/or download on the Council’s
website at https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/planningpolicyconsultations

Consultation events

Two digital consultation events were carried out on the 16™ and 17" November 2021. These
events were publicised on the Council website as well as on the leaflets and press releases.
Attendees were able to call the office to book a time slot or enter the event via a Microsoft
Teams link on the Rushmoor Borough Council Website. We received approximately 30

1
Pack Page 103


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/planningpolicyconsultations

telephone calls during the consultation period with people asking questions about the
consultation documents and their implications. The majority of people contacting us
requested to be signed up for the digital drop in events. The estimated attendance for the
two digital events was 25 people.

An in person drop in event was also arranged at the Council Offices for the 19t November,
however this was principally advertised for consultees who were unable to attend the digital
events. The Council Offices are easily accessible via public transport and is within Farnborough
Town Centre. For the drop in event several display boards were available for the public to
view (Appendix 12) which provided summary information on the documents which were
being consulted upon Council officers were also available to answer any questions (Appendix
13). The public were encouraged to complete the supplied feedback form, or to email to
policy email address with any comments. The estimated attendance for the in person drop in
events was 10 people, this reflects the willingness of the public to engage with the
consultation digitally and over the phone.

From the 19" November 2021 the five display boards (Appendix 12) that provided a summary
information of the consultation, were exhibited in the reception of the Council Offices.

Summary of the main issues raised and officer responses

We received 11 responses relating to the Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and
Management Plan with most of the comments received focusing on the proposed boundary
changes (i.e. areas to be removed from the conservation area).

Issues identified:

1. Concerns that areas are being removed from the conservation area

It is a commitment within the Rushmoor Local Plan (2019) to review the borough’s
Conservation Areas. Conservation areas are a heritage designation guided by the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 that requires Local planning
authorities to identify areas of special architectural or historic interest, the character or
appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.

Prior to the most recent review, Manor Park Conservation Area was reviewed in 1989. As
part of the current review we have produced a conservation area character appraisal
which identifies some areas could be removed because they do not demonstrate special
architectural or historic interest. National Planning Policy is clear that the concept of
conservation should not be devalued through the designation of areas that lack special
interest.

2. Concern that development has been allowed within the conservation area which
now requires boundaries to be amended

The purpose of conservation area designation is not to prevent development. Change is
inevitable but as planning authority we seek to manage change in a way that conserves
and enhances the character and appearance of historic areas.

2
Pack Page 104



The preparation of a character appraisal provided information on the significance of the
area and identifies threats to its special architectural or historic interest. The character
appraisal will upon adoption be a material consideration in decision making

3. It will be of benefit for Campbell Fields to remain within the conservation area

Conservation areas are a heritage designation. The modern development at Campbell
Fields (constructed in the early 2000s) whilst of a relatively high standard of design does
not provide special architectural or historic interest and should not be retained in the
conservation area. National Planning Policy is clear that the concept of conservation
should not be devalued through the designation of areas that lack special interest.

As part of the planning permission for the Campbell Fields development, all permitted
developments have been removed meaning that restrictions on the type of development
that can take place within the development are greater than those that apply in
conservation areas.

The mature trees within the established landscape buffer benefit from a Tree
Preservation Order which will not be impacted by the amendments to the conservation
area.

4. Church Lane East / Campbell fields landscape buffer should be retained in the
conservation area as it has rich biodiversity and creates a sense of place.

Biodiversity and ecology assets in the borough are protected under separate legislation
and by both national and local planning policies. The landscape buffer between Church
Lane and the Campbell Fields development contains a number of mature trees that are
protected by a Tree Preservation Orders (TPO). The tree preservation order will remain
in place following changes to the conservation area boundary.

5. Suggestion that properties along the High Street within the Conservation Area are
removed.

The properties along the High Street that are included within the Conservation Area
predominantly date from before 1911 and are historic buildings that . We acknowledge
that some of the building facades have altered, however the roofs and chimneys stacks
remain. These historic buildings provide a setting to the historic parkland and village green
and therefore remain within the conservation area boundary.

Next Steps

Following consideration of the comments received (Appendix 14) it is proposed that the
Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan be presented to the Councils
Cabinet for adoption with the boundaries being amended as set out in the consultation draft
document.

Pack Page 105



Appendix 1- Email to Consultees

Rushmoor Borough Council Conservation Area Consultations - Statutory Consultees

Rushmoor Council Planning Policy
RC Te Rushmeor Council Planning Policy

(i) You forwarded this message on 17/11/2021 09:59.
Dear Sir / Madam,
We are contacting you as you have previously asked to be notified of planning policy and heritage consultations undertaken by Rushmoor Borough Council.
The Council is currently consulting on the following heritage documents for a period of six weeks:
s Draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
e Draft Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
* Draft Farnborough Street Conservation Area Appraizal and Management Plan

e Draft 5t Michaels Abbey Conservation Area Appraisal

You can view the documents and find more information online at https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/planningpolicyconsultations

The closing date for receipt of comments is Monday 13 December 2021.

To respond please email planningpolicy@ rushmoor gov.uk or write to us at the following address:

Planning Paolicy and Conservation
Rushmoor Borough Council
Council Offices

Farnborough Road

Farnborough

Hampshire

GU14 71U

Yours faithfully,

The Flanning Policy and Conservation Team

Planning Policy and Conservation Team
Planning Policy and Conservation Team| Rushmoor Borough Council | Councdil Offices | Farnborough Road | Farnborough | Hampshire | GU14 70

DDi: 01252 398787 | e:planningpolicy@rushmoor.gov.uk | w: weiw.rushmoor.gov.ule

o Fleass consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

4
Pack Page 106



Appendix 2—- Letters to Householders

Doz Dwner fOooupler,

Manor Park Consenation Area Rewlew — Consultaticn on draft Character Appratsal and
Management Plan, including proposed boundary changes.

Wi are contacting you 5 your property & located within the Manor Park conserdation
anca. Wihe v undortaken 2 roview of the conscrvation aroa, which was kst roviewed in
1985, to cnsunc that the character, historic sgnificance and appearanos of the
canservation ancss s retained and eohanoed.

A5 part of the review prooess, 3 draft Corscraation Character Apprakal and
Kanagement Plan dooumnent has beon producsd for public consulation which proposss
chainges to-the boundany of the conserdation anca. A keaflet s ondosed that sumenarises
the proposcsd boundary changes ta Maror Fark Conscrvation Arca. i these changes ans
implemenbosd, this will mean that some propemics will no longer be part of the
COnSErvation ansa

Wi would like wour wiews on the dratt dooumient windch can be vicwoed:

*  anour wehshe: sk nash mear gosukdclanningroloaansult aticos, and
= at Aushmigor Borough Council Offices, Aldershot Librany and Farnborough Librang

during opening hours.

If ywou wish o respond to the consaiation, please k28 us knos your views By Spm on
Monday 13°° December 2021.

¥ou can scnd us your comiments on the draft documcnt in any of the foliosing ways:
By omadl
RlanninERlo s Mmool 2o, uk

By peost

Planning Podicy

Bishmexar Borough Council
Council Offices
Farmiborough Road

Farmborough
Hants
GUL4TIU

Wi anc also hosting virtual drap n scsskons on the proposcsd changes. Those sesskons
will be held on 177 November between 102m and 12pm, and Spm Tom using Micrasoft
Teams. Floase pontact us on D1Z5E 398 TET to regieer for o virtual cvent or 5o that we
2 mizke aRcmathes armangements if you cannot interact with us digitalby.

Yours faithfulky
Tew Ml
Tim: il

Head of Ecancany, Planning and Strategic Housing

Pack Page 107



Appendix 3- Leaflet included with Letters to Householders

cOn servati on Area gl::ler;s;?glo‘cxrzgrough Council is reviewing the Manor Park

ConSU Itation information The cor ion area was first igl in 1980 and in 1989. The adopted Rushmoor

Local Plan (2019) commits us to reviewing our conservation areas.

The purpose of a Conservation Area Appraisal

A Co ion Area Appraisal justifies the ion area i ion as well as i

the area’s key strengths and weaknesses.

What changes are proposed

The following two areas are to be de- i from the conservation area as they

do not enhance or preserve the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Campbell Fields is a modemn housing development, and the buildings are not heritage assets. A tree
preservation order is in place within Campbell Fields i ion for trees in the
area of land adjoining Church Lane East.

Eggars Court and Cherry Lodge are modern development, the buildings are not heritage assets.
Five trees within the grounds benefit from a Tree Preservation Order.

What needs planning permission in conservation areas

In conservation areas planning permission is required for some changes that would normally be
classed as Some are given below:

* Single storey ions to the rear of i ing size

= Extensions at the rear that are more than one storey or any extensions at the side of a house;
* Additions, alterations or extensions to roofs;

= Cladding any part of the house with stone, render, timber, files, or another material.

Note: Flats do not benefit from i P 1t rights so ission is required for all works
that are not like-for-like replacements or that might change the appearance of the building.

Treesina that meet i criteria are by legislation so that councils
should be notified of any works to a tree within a conservation area. This notice period gives the au-
thority an opportunity to consider whether to make a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) on the free.

Prior to the adoption of the final conservation area appraisal and management plan, we will serve
TPOs, where necessary and justified.

How to respond to the

‘We would welcome your views on the draft Character Apprai Plan, i
the proposed boundary changes. Printed copies of the document are available to view at the council
offices and Aldershot and Famborough libraries during opening hours. Please check before travelling.

must be it by 13 D 2021 and can be submitted using one of the
following methods:

By email
planningpolicy@rushmoor.gov.uk

In writing

Planning Policy

Rushmoor Borough Council
Council Offices
Farnborough Road
Farnborough

Hants

GU147JU

Further Information

We are also hosting virtual drop-in sessions on the proposed changes. These sessions will be held on
the 17 November, between 10am and midday, and from 5pm to 7pm. Anyone unabie to attend should
contact us on 01252 398 787 to make alternative arrangements.

[ 70 160 metres .
@ Crown copyright and data base rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100026264 Listed buildings
Council Offices, www_rushmoor.gov.uk W @rushmoorcounct
K - Locally listed E:’r::: Aoad, 01252 308 390 A1 Rushmoor Borough Counct
Nationally Hants, GU14 7JU customerservicee@rnuahmoor.gov.uk October 2021
Conservation area boundary  Proposed de-designation listed

6
Pack Page 108



Appendix 4- Media Release

fome p KNews p November 2021 Councll assks views on coneervation arsas
Media release - issued 04 Nov 2021

Council seeks views on conservation
areas

You are in News

November 2021

Irpartant step forward for new Local residents are being asked to give their views on proposed changes
visitor centre to four conservation areas in Aldershot and Farnborough.

Unign Yard regenerafion scheme

construction wnder way In the second phase of 3 major project, Rushmeoor Borough Council is undenaking a
review of more conservation areas and has now lsunched a consultation to hear what
App puts Aldershot on the map )
pecple think of the plans.
Christrnias is coming to Aldershot
and Famnborowgh

The reviews are part of the council's overall 3m to protect and improwve the hemtage

Council seeks views on and character of Aldershot and Farmborough and build on the policies in the Rushmaoor

conservation areas Local Plan.

In the Manor Park and Fambaerough Hill censervation areas, the council is propesing
to change the boundaries. This would remove areas that do not reflect, or add to, the
historic character of the area. Oversll, the conssrvation areas would be smaller, but

meore focused.

The proposed amendments 1o the Basingsteks Canal conservation area takes account
of the changes to the Aldershot Garrisen and the designation of parts of the area as
Suitsble Afternative Natursl Green Space [SANG).

The council is alse proposing 1o de-designats the St Michasls Abbey conssrvation
area a5 3 significant number of buildings within the conzervation area are medemn and
the core heritage buildings, and their ssttings such as 5t Michaslz Abbey and St
Peters School are Mationally Listed, which provides greater protection than

consenvation ares designation.

As well as finding out more and making comments on our Conservation area
reviews page, residents will also be able to find out more about the progosals at four
wirtual drop-in s=szions. These will be for:

= Bt Michaels Abbey and Farnborough Hill on Tuesday 16 Movember
» Basingsioks Cana! and Manor Park on Wednesdsy 17 Movember

Anyone who would like to attend one of the sessions should ema
planningpolicyi@rushmaoor gowv uk.

Anyons unable to attend should contact the planning policy team en 01252 388787, so
they can make alternative arrangemeants.

Fushmoor Boreugh Council's Cabinet member for Planning and Economy, Councillor
Iarinag Munro, said: "Our conservation areas play an impotant role in maintaining the
heritage and character of our towns. & lot has chanpged since we |35t reviewsd them.
Given the significance of these areas, we hops that residents wil take the time to look
at the propossls in the consultations and give their views sc we can fully take account
of local opinions.”

The consultations are available on our Consenvation area reviews page until Spm on
Monday 13 Decembsr.

Related links

p Conservation area reviews

p Current consultations

Communications

communicstions{@rushmoor.gou.uk
Tel: 01232 398744
b View full detzils

Share this page

Ei Facebook
Wl Twitter
[ Linkedin
3§ Reddit

t Tumblr

Pack Page 109



0TT 8bed »oed

Appendix 5— Newsletter notification

RUSEMOGR

Remembrance
Sunday 2021
14 November

Joint civic/military services
in Aldershot and Farnborough

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/remembrancesunday

Remembrance Sunday

To mark Remembrance Sunday, there ane & number of jnt civic and millary serdoes lasing place on Sunday 14 Novemiber @cnoss ASErshol and Fambanmisgh.

Al Ihe services are apen to the pusic and further milormation i availsie on 1he BoMCMrancs SUNdey PagE an Our wehsbe:

Food waste collections update and thanks

s aready our tird week of food waste colactions and we'd lke 10 say another by thank you for your recycing eforts sa far

nour second wesk, we oolecied @ massive B4 tonnes of iood washe for recyoling. Al the wasie has been sent i an anaerobic digestion daclity near Basingsioke, where i b being broken dosm i generabe renswable enengy and a digestabe which Is used as a nuidenéch e lser

f yoitve Nl Bean LSIng your caddies yet, 'S not 10 1aie fo S - o can use your weekly ooleclion 10 necyche all types of 1000 waste. I you nesd help getting stamed, we'e created a Short videg ¥ou can alsa find delals on the (00 SRSl recyoing pagE an our wehsbe.

Vourr hlack outdoor caddy needs 1o be cut by Tam on the day of oolkeotion nd i realy halps our crews i you can leave B in @ vishbie place. Food waste s emptied separaiely b your othisr bing and 1he 1eam can be oul working unel 4pm, 50 0 may be colected at @ diferant time.

To check your colleciion calendar go o the o colieciions page on our websie.

Conservation areas - give Us your views

e would ke your views on some propased changes B four conserdaiion areas in Aldershol and Farnborough.

The reviews. are part of our ongems W to probsct and | mpeose the hertage and character of Akrshot and Farnbanigh and bulid on the polickes in the Rusnmoor Looal Plan. The conservation aneas are 51 Michas!'s Abbey, Fambarough HIL Manar Park in Adershat and the Basingstoie Sanal.

A5 il @5 T onine consuation, you can ke Dart in oo of $our Ml drop-n sessions on 16 and 17 November. To Snd ot more and (o take pan in the consutation, plase go i e Lonstnalion & 06 MEVEws Page On our webshe. You wil find detalls of how b B poe in the dropn Sessions on i indivdual Consenation ans apsmisal and
management plan pages

The closing dabe is Monday 13 Decensber,

Festive dates for your diary

Chiisimas s just arcund fhe comer and we have a number of Chrisimas. events coming up o help get fwe fesivEes siarbed.

Join Us for the Aisershol Chits!mes Craser and Chrstmas (gt swikch-an on Saiurday 20 Novembar fros misday b 5.450m 0 AKIETshot (own cendne. Thirs wil bi festhe stalls 10 browse, Santa's 9o, @ nathity fams, noes, oros skis, fce painting, Ive perlomiances, brass bands and more. This year, thie big senchon wil b pace in



Appendix 6 =Social Media Post — 8 November

Rushmoor Borough Council
‘ 8 November 2021 - §
We are inviting local residents to give their views on some proposed
changes to four conservation areas in Aldershot and Famborough.
The reviews are part of our long-term work to protect and improve the
heritage and character of Aldershot and Farmborough and build on the
policies in the Rushmoor Local Plan.
The conservation areas are St Michael’s Abbey, Farnborough Hill, Manor
Park in Aldershot and the Basingstoke Canal.
As well as the online consultation, residents will ... See more

Protecting and improving
our local heritage

We want your views

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationreviews

RUSH \%(0]0) 31

BOROUGH COUNCIIL

OB 15 comments 7 shares

Pack Page 111



Appendix 7 — Social Media Post — 18 November

Rushmoor Borough Council
’ 18 November 2021 - &
If you were unable to attend the online sessions on our conservation area
consultation, we will be holding a drop-in event at the council offices
between 10am and Spm tomorrow (19 November).
The conservation areas are St Michael's Abbey, Farmborough Hill, Manor
Park in Aldershot and the Basingstoke Canal.
If you would like to attend, please call us on 01252 398787 or email
planningpolicy@rushmoor.gov.uk to book a place as our offices are open for
pre-booked appointments only.
Visitors will be able to look at information boards and the relevant draft
documents and talk to planning officers.
Please could anyone attending the drop in sessions to wear a face covering
and remain socially distanced during their visit. Thank you.

ZTON
an |
)y |,
Protecting and improving

our local heritage
We want your views

RUSH \Y(0]0) 34

BOROUGH COUNCIL

o 5 4 shares
10

Pack Page 112



Appendix 8 — Social Media Post — 9 December

Rushmoor Borough Council
‘ 9 December 2021 at 00:11 - §
There's still time to give your views on some proposed changes to four
conservation areas in Aldershot and Farnborough.
The conservation areas are St Michael's Abbey, Farnborough Hill, Manor
Park in Aldershot and the Basingstoke Canal.
The consultation ends next Monday, December 13.
The reviews are part of our long-term work to protect and improve the
heritage and character of Aldershot and Farnborough and build on the
policies in the Rushmoor Local Plan.
For more information and to take part in the online consultation please go to
www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationreviews

Protecting and improving
our local heritage

We want your views

www.rushmoor.gov.uk/conservationreviews

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

11

Pack Page 113



Appendix 9 —~Website — main consultation page

Coronavimus (COVID-13) - The latest information about cur services, government advice and where to get help.

Skip bo main conbend | Languages | Halp using this silm | Cortact us

REZHMQRR

Plarmin

Conservation area reviews

P — We are proposing to make a number of changes to Basingstoke Canal, W
Famborough Hill, Manor Park and 5t Michasl's Abbey conservation areas.

Flanning policias == Draft Basingetoke Canal
T ~ Character Appralaal and
The Rushmoar Local Fian L A st Manzagsment Ftan [10Ma]
. We -
T — Draft Famborough Hill Charactsr
Smp‘ﬂ:::::l:‘;:;"’fum = in the borough. - E‘;ﬁ;]!lm and Managsment Plan

Get Involved In developing our -_ Diraft Manor Park Charactsr

planning polizles o Appraleal and Managament Plan
e [10Mm]
|smh-' el of Communiy S ' ) T %) Draft 5t Michasts Abday
Character Appraleal [7Mb]
Pilznning peilcy consultations } Help witn POF oocuments
Kiep up 1o daste wilh the latest

Related links

} Consarvation arsas

Planning chligations and the
Community Infrastruciore Lewy

Hational, regional and counly
planning palicy documenis

Heighbioutood planning

Farmer local plans and policies

§ Wiew Tull detalla

Share this page

Wiou can submil your fi

Eleslis

Ei Facebook

Planning Palcy, oF Twitter
Rushmopar Borough Coundl,

- - [ Linkadin
Caunci Office

Farnbarough Road, o5 Readit
Farnbarough t Tumbir
Hampshire

GU14 TUU

Drop-in sessions

16 and 17 Movember

disd our virlual drogHin 5 A0S DN 2

e Covunci Offices an the 19 November. You can view the

consuliation event information ws ing the inks below.

on 13 Decembar at Spm.

Privacy notice

Riex

boul the information you send 1o ws and whal we will wse it for in our po

12

Pack Page 114



Appendix 10 — Website - Manor Park consultation page (pre consultation events)

RUSHMOOR

_BOROUGH

¥t ane in Planning

Planning policies

The: Rushmaor Local Plan

Supplemenlary plarmning
docurments and advice nobes

Gat Invalved In devaloping our
pianning podcise

Stalerment of Community
Invobvernent

Planning policy coneuitations
Keep up o date with the betest
news an planning palicy
Planning ohligations and the
Cormmunity Infrastineciure Lesy

Matiorel, regional and oounty
planning palicy doouments

Naiphbourhoed plarming

Fommer local plans and polices

‘Skip o main content | Languages | Haelp using this sile | Contactus

i il anline

mant ~ Planning

_ Sedlch

Consultation on the draft Manor Park
Character Appraisal and Management
Plan

Glve your viewe on the proposed boundary changes, characier appraleal
and management plan for Manor Park Conearvation Area.

Background

Thez o af Aldershol wers centred anound the Manor Park area until e 1850s, when

signaled in 1980 and wes reviewed in

1 A ar Mar

pement Plan for this

af which il is de

O PrEserye OF erhance.

The draft docurment proposss zome amendments i the corseration smea boundang.

al the dooument are available o vew al:

»  Rushmoor Borowgh Coundl Ofices

= Famnborough Lbrary
= Aldershol Library
Cur offic ourrently apen by appoiniment anly, so pleasse check before you
alierd

Hawe your say

Yiou i =it you

planningpolicyinshmoos

Flarming Polioy.
Rushmoor Borowugh Coundl,
Coundl Cffices,

Farnborough Riood

nborough
Hampshire
GUid TIU

Cnline drop-in sessions

= lam and 12pm:

= Spmand Tpre W

ues aliending the orline sessions plesse call e on 01252 398767 or

ek

'E:-I::-'_:' LISITTICK

This consubation doses on 13 Decambar at Som

13

Related documents

"% Craft Manor Park Charactsr
Appraleal and Management Plan
[1EMB]

¥ Helg with POF dosumenic

§ Consareation arsgs
» Locally llstsd bulidings
b Natiomally iated busdings

¥ Carrying out work to a Beted
t‘.lllﬂlﬂg or In 2 congenvation aras

¥ The Rushmaar Local Ptan

Tirushmoor. gk
Tal; 01252 J98TAT
¥ Viow Tull detalla

i Facebook
W Twitier
3 Linkedin
5 Reddrt
t Tumbir

Pack Page 115



Appendix 11- Manor Park consultation page (post consultation events)

Coronavine: (COAVID-18) - Tha lriect Information about our cerviosc, govemment sdvios and whers to get heig

S iy e vl | Lrypeeces | il i e el | Combecd i

USHMOOR

CRLGH COLRCIE . 5 [Enler alayword |

Helising and Commuondy snd B nese snd Tl el Hamallh wred [ Al

Ha Worer Com - o I FManni =
- R— R— o~ Banalils Latniirs Licsraing Farking Support Hushmow

A

a&; "‘:'I.'\-I; |'-\.'|-.-\.-|.--L_. IR I L
Consultation on the draft Manor Park
Character Appraisal and Management

EE— Plan [ Pt dourerc |

1"snreng polcres

ETEE Py FULEE - LS vEi W SRR

L D= NMunor |sri L herecier

v your viaws on B propossd bounderny shanges, characdsr appraisal - "!mi"‘ ans Munsguman Fun

and managamend plan for Manor Park Concarsaton Area.

1 e Muataraan Lol | T

Suppumenlery penny b FEp s JE deourraste
Ouoormen b wE sOvioE ol

Backgraund
— [ Resedinis
phinmng lewe Vs b ol icvarnitl ws cornine mezasned Thas dwncr | erh s Lndil e 18500, wines

. i1l " P el of M ey wrad e cossbrocien of e relfwsy reeclid IS B CEnesr vLsan e
] of metzdaia greraih ¥ Lol e Buikdings
¥ Rubcnslly hebed b kdings
! ! N - ) = ! F Camyng cul work io @ helsd
Pz g ko 2l Wil I Ladas 1950 1 s b currsan By no Conssrodion Sres Sepramsl or Manspersn P o his ~
e on plannmng poicy buwiding or n & comésryEbhon S
R —— ¥ | b Bbhmocr Locsl Men
| wmwing chigslcais W M
Lumeroraly Irdras lrozl e Ly Draft Charazier Appralsal and Managemani Flan
::“.‘:"-‘:‘ Tl WTC ""*'lﬂr et hrvw crssabes T cinl] Chusrsecier Sggamio sl Msrssyerren] |an b s Mames
J s | 10 T 1 ang his e wilsraa I"lsnmng palicy
szt paning Felon B e dawsl, e Choreche of g [ T ———
whichi il 1a desinbie lo prassnve of snbsnos I O12sa

b ocwl e wnd pedesas sra
b Y= full detwka

1 il S smen L= I ATl I s O L OO e 300 e SO T

Kl rucmbcor
- L

o wrear

. b= aigh Libwwry

n  Alhsrshul Litsy ﬂ'—"“""
o5 Hmddit

i s -curman By ogsn by spgesinlmen | uoly, s phesoss check, bedlune yo § lumkic

i ol sl ciosis on 15 ecsmber st Spm

14

Pack Page 116



Appendix 12— Banners

Conservation area
reviews

Manor Park
conservation area

INTRODUCTION

#As set out in the Rushmear Locol Plan
(3019, we ore committad to commyping
out a comprabansive review of the
borough's eight consarvotion oreas.

This is port of our overoll strategy to
pratect and improve the heritoga of
the borowgh and its chorocter. We wont
o moka sure that our consarvotion
arzos one still meoningful and protact
their choracter and heritoge for futwe
generotions.

L OVERVIEW DOCUMENT

The published Conservation Areo
Crearview document contains
infarmoticn on the legisiotion which
proteats consarvation oreas.  olso
provides some comtaxt for the area
whikch should be corsidered olongside
the individual appraisol documants.

2 APPRAISAL

# Conservotion Areo Appraisol
identifies why the area is designated
ard identifies whot features oe
important to protect and anhonce

The oppraisal defines what is positva
ard negative about the conservation
arap, ard whara there are opportunities
for bencficial change.

# Conservotion Areo Appraisol

provides a fromewaork for developmanit
maragament decisions and con be usad
as ewidence to rafise opplicotions which
thraotan the charocter of tha oreo.

Arn adopted Conservotion Arca Appraisal
is a "matarial considenation” in decision

making and aims to raise the stondards
of davelopment

3. MANAGEMENT PLAM

# Conservotion Areo Manopament Plan
is bosad on the approisal of the orea.

& sats out the future approach o
safeguarding the orchitectunal ond
historic charactar. k also dentifies
oppartunities for enhancement.

Protecting and improving

our local heritage
We want your views

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

15

TWO KEY CHARACTER AREAS

As part of the currant review of the
Manor Park consarvation area, wa
analysed its charocter and identifiad
two koy oreas within it

Woe have divided the corservation arec
into two sub-category arsas thot raflect
their differort charocteristics:

- Manor Park and Church Lane Eost
« Church Hil, the willoge green and
the High Stroct

For aach of thesa areos, wa have
considared the following to identify tha
historio charactaristics that we want to
protect

« Streotsoope and boundanes (public areos)
« Open spoces, parks & gardens ond traes
« Building form and datail (architecture)

« Altargtions

CONSULTATION PROPOSALS

Boundary changes

Whan we reviewed the conzarvation
oraq, it becarme dlear that ports of it
do nat reflect its histono character.
it iz proposed to ramave the modarn

= of Campball Fialds,
Eggars Court ond Cherry Lodga as
thasa arcas do not enhonce or presarve
tha choracter or appeorance of the
consarvation area.

Currently we are notfied of works to
trees within o consarvation areq, cur
traa officar has bean informad of tha
suggested alterations to the boundary.

Protecting and improving
our local heritage
We want your views

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Pack Page 117




8TT abed »oed

Appendix 13- Photograph of Consultation Event

16

INTRODUCTION

i the Rushmocr Local Pleft

= committed % corrying
erehensive review of the

oht consemvation areas




6TT abed »oed

Respondent

Dustin Lees -
Surrey County
Council
MWPA

Farihah
Choudhury

Judith
Johnson,
Environment
Agency

Sharon

Jenkins,
Natural
England

Robert Lloyd-
Sweet,
Historic
England

Appendix 14— Summary of comments received on the Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan and the
Councils response

Response Officer Comment

The Minerals and Waste Planning Authority (MWPA) has  Noted.
no comments to make about the relevant appraisals and

management plans.

We welcome the re-designated conservation area Support noted.
maintaining protection around Aldershot Manor Park,

Aldershot Green and peripheral play and sports facilities.

Ensuring these are high quality spaces will encourage

residents to use them to which benefits health and

wellbeing.

Due to limited capacity within the Thames Sustainable Noted.
Places team, we are unable to consider these

documents.

Natural England does not have any specific comments on = Noted.

this draft Conservation Area Appraisal and Management
Plan.

Historic England recognise that reviewing the Support Noted.
conservation area boundaries is an important part of the

Council's statutory duty and helps to ensure both that

areas that are deserving of protection and enhancement

are appropriately identified and defined and that

unnecessary burdens are not applied to areas that do not

17



02T 8bed »oed

merit protection. | am duty bound to restate that whilst
Historic England may provide advice on the process and
considerations to be taken into account in determining
what areas might be considered as suitable for
designation as conservation areas, it is outside our remit
to provide an opinion on what should or not should not
be a conservation area as this is legally identified as the
role of the Local Planning Authority.

| am pleased to confirm that we agree with the logic of
removing the recent housing development from the
Manor Park Conservation Area.

Chris Morgan

Well, | note with interest that all of the proposals include
a reduction. To me this means you and or your
predecessors have failed. Surely the idea of having
conservation areas is to protect what is there, in reality
these areas should grow as time passes and more
properties and sites fall into the historic bracket.

| can’t believe that there is any significant cost involved
other than what | imagine was a very costly exercise to
create these reports.

It is a commitment within the Rushmoor Local Plan (2019) to review
the borough’s Conservation Areas.

Conservation areas are a heritage designation. The Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires Local planning
authorities to identify areas of special architectural or historic
interest, the character or appearance of which is desirable to preserve
and enhance.

Conservation areas should be supported by conservation area
appraisals to justify their designation.

Historic England acknowledge that change in conservation areas is
inevitable, and often beneficial. The conservation area appraisal and
management plan identifies ways to manage change in a way that
conserves and enhances the conservation areas character and
appearance.

18



12T abed »oed

Claire Young

Whilst the Campbell Fields estate is a modern housing
development, it sits within a site which has a rich
biodiversity, which includes the land which is adjoining to
Church Lane East.

When entering the park from Church Lane East, the vista
created by this land on the left-hand side in conjunction
with the view down the path to the main park, enhances
the Manor Park conservation area, and preserves its
character and appearance. The combination of hedges,
trees, open space and view down the pathway to the
park create the sense of place that gives Manor Park it's
special character, which includes the smells when
entering from the top of Church Lane East in conjunction
with the Manor Park estate on the left-hand side. It
creates an area of shade, which local residents in
Rushmoor are able to access and use.

Whilst it is a small piece of land, it is rich in biodiversity,
which includes large tress, native flora and fauna that are
common in woodlands, as well as Bee Orchids

| would like to propose that the small piece of land at the
front of the Campbell Fields Estate, adjoining Church
Lane East forms part of the existing boundary in the
conservation area, rather than being removed, as is
currently planned.

Proposals for development in conservation areas that require
planning consent will be determined in accordance with the Local
Plan unless there are material considerations that indicate otherwise.

Area of approx. 0.25 ha was retained as open space part of the
planning permission for the Campbell fields development with many
of the existing trees along the boundary of Church Lane East retained.
The area to the east of the access road provides communal open
space for the development and contained several Trees benefiting
from Tree Preservation Orders. In addition, Policy DE6 of the
Rushmoor Local Plan provides protection to this area of open space.

A Management Company is responsible for the maintenance and
upkeep of communal areas and open space that within the Campbell
Fields development in accordance with the planning permission legal
agreement.

Biodiversity and ecology assets in the borough are protected under
separate legislation and by both national and local planning policies.

The land in question is covered by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
that covers over 20 trees. The TPO will not be impacted by changes to
the Conservation Area boundary.

19



221 abed yoed

Elaine
Grieveson

Elaine Jee

The Council should not be altering any boundaries

involving a Conservation Area unless you are extending it.

These areas are supposed to be protected and once you
start 'making them smaller' to refine your help/work to
keep them, what's to stop you, slowly edging away at the
boundaries until the area doesn't exist at all.

Conservation Areas are supposed to be Protected and
Managed. This country is losing far too much Woodlands,
along with Ancient Woodlands that can NEVER ever be
replaced, the biodiversity of an Ancient Woodland is
more than just trees, it's about the untouched soil that
goes down to the core.

Concerns raised about the management of Southwood
Country Park.

| live at (redacted) High St, Aldershot and have lived here
since 2013. This is the first time | am aware that | reside
within the conservation area.

The properties here on High Street are a mixture of
business premises, owner occupied and rented
properties and | would suggest they are very much the

It is a commitment within the Rushmoor Local Plan (2019) to review
the borough’s Conservation Areas. Conservation areas are a heritage
designation the characher or appearance of which is desirable to
preserve or enhance. Conservation areas should be supported by
conservation area appraisals in order to justify their designation.
National Planning Policy is clear that the concept of conservation
should not be devalued through the designation of areas that lack
special interest.

Biodiversity and ecology assets in the borough are protected under
separate legislation and by both national and local planning policies.
The landscaped area on the site adjoining Church Lane East contains
several trees that are protected by Tree Preservation Orders.

An interim management plan for Southwood Country Park Suitable
Alternative Natural Green Space has been prepared and can be
accessed on our website:
https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/southwoodcountrypark

The properties along the High Street date have been located within
the Manor Park Conservation area since its designation in 1980. New
residents are made aware of Conservation Area and other Land
Charges on their property deeds by their conveyance solicitors.

The properties along the High Street that are included within the
Conservation Area predominantly date from before 1911 and are
historic buildings. We acknowledge that some of the building facades

20


https://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/southwoodcountrypark

€21 abed »oed

Oliver Sturt

Patricia
White

lower end of the market. Can | propose that the
properties along the High Street become de-designated.

We suffer from pollution, flooding and antisocial
behaviour and | can see no real reason why my property
would be consider an asset any more than the properties
in my area excluded from the designated area.

| would be against anything that devalues the price of my
property.

| would be against anything that allows any more
properties to be built near my flat in Campbell fields.

| feel it will be of benefit to Aldershot residents for
Campbell Fields to stay within the Manor Park
Conservation Area.

have altered, however the roofs and chimneys stacks remain. The
buildings provide a setting to the historic public parkland and village
green and they will remain within the conservation area.

Conservation Areas are heritage designations and the matters

detailed are factors that are not considered in their designation.

Impact on property value is not a planning consideration.

The grounds of Manor Park will remain within the conservation area.

The modern development at Campbell Fields is not of special
architectural or historic interest and therefore should not be retained
in the conservation area.

The landscaped area on the site adjoining Church Lane East contains a
number of trees that are protected by Tree Preservation Orders.

21



2T abed yoed

Sean Bissett-
Powell

One of the repeated reasons quoted for removing
sections of Conservation Area is the presence of modern
developments which do not match conservation
requirements.

What went wrong with the planning system that
consent was granted to modern developments within
conservation areas if they would not meet
conservation requirements?

Does the fact that they gained permission indicate
either that Conservation Areas actually offer no
protection, or that the planning permissions were
incorrectly granted?

Will the Council be reviewing these past planning
permissions to learn lessons going forward, identify
why they were granted and determine whether any
malfeasance occurred in the process

What can be done so that future planning
permissions will be scrutinised more closely with
regard to conservation characteristics, in order to

There has been development within the Manor Park conservation
area since it was last reviewed, including the modern Campbell Fields
development.

The purpose of conservation areas designation is not to prevent
development. Change is inevitable but as planning authority we seek
to manage change in a way that conserves and enhances the
character and appearance of historic areas. It is important to note
that some forms of development do not require planning permission,
these are known as permitted development rights. The National
Planning Policy Framework requires that Local planning authorities
should look for opportunities for new development within
conservation areas ‘to enhance or better reveal their significance’.

As noted above some development in or adjoining conservation areas
that could be considered detrimental to their character and
appearance do not require planning permission.

Planning applications are determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
As noted above some forms of development (permitted
development) do not require planning permission.

The preparation of a character appraisal helps to understand the
significance of the area and identify threats to its special architectural

22



G¢T 9bed »oed

prevent developers “salami slicing” the remaining
conservation areas only for them to be eliminated in
a few years’ time during the next review?

Will open spaces removed from conservation areas
because they are covered by other schemes will still
benefit from equivalent levels of protection, and whether
the alternative schemes have been reviewed to
determine that they, in turn, are not about to be
removed.

or historic interest. The character appraisal will upon adoption be a
material consideration in decision making.

The protection offered by other designations that apply are not
impacted by the conservation area review process. A strip of land
with established trees adjoining Church Lane East will be removed
from the conservation area. The majority of trees on this land are
protected by Tree Preservation orders which will not be impacted by
changes to the conservation area boundary.

23



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 4

CABINET COUNCILLOR MARTIN TENNANT
MAJOR PROJECTS AND PROPERTY

PORTFOLIO HOLDER

15t MARCH 2022 REPORT NO. REG2202

KEY DECISION: YES

REGENERATING RUSHMOOR PROGRAMME -

THE GALLERIES PROGRESS UPDATE & NEXT STEPS

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
SUMMARY:

This report provides an update on The Galleries regeneration scheme and seeks
approval, in principle, for officers to explore a land transfer for the purposes of
public car park reprovision on the site of the former Conservative Club. This
represents a departure from the previous position where it was the intention for
a new car park to be provided on a long lease basis within The Galleries scheme
associated with planning application 20/00508/FULPP.

RECOMMENDATION:
That Cabinet:

1. Agree, in principle, to the disposal of the existing High Street Multi-Storey
Car Park freehold to the developer of The Galleries scheme in return for
the transfer of the freehold interest of the former Conservative Club site at
Little Wellington Street, Aldershot to the Council on the basis that a new,
purpose-built public car park of at least 250 spaces will be constructed by
the developer prior to handover, subject to planning permission being
granted.

2. Note that the above transaction is subject to due diligence with further
reports to be presented to Cabinet for consideration in due course.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on The Galleries
regeneration scheme and seek approval, in principle, for officers to explore
a land transfer with the developer (Shaviram) for the purposes of public car
park reprovision on the site of the former Conservative Club. This represents

Pack Page 127



1.2.

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

3.1.

3.2.

a departure from the previous position where it was the intention for a new
car park to be provided within The Galleries scheme associated with
planning application 20/00508/FULPP.

This alternative approach has been presented to the Council for
consideration following the successful acquisition of the former
Conservative Club site by Shaviram in February 2022.

BACKGROUND

Cabinet considered a report (LEG1616) in December 2016, approving in
principle the Council disposing of its land interest in the High Street Multi-
Storey Car Park to Shaviram Aldershot Ltd to facilitate the redevelopment
of The Galleries shopping centre.

In 2018 there were three further reports — CD1801 where an additional
budget of £10,000 was agreed to meet professional advice associated with
the transfer; CEX1804 which supported the public consultation on The
Galleries scheme taking place and noted that this and the subsequent
submission of the planning application by Shaviram Aldershot Ltd would
include the site of the Council owned High Street Multi-Storey Car Park and
take place in advance of any legal agreement aligned to land transfer being
finalised; and CD1802 which covered off the implications of the successful
HIF funding.

A final report (RP1909) was received by Cabinet in May 2019 approving the
disposal of the Council’s legal interest in the existing High Street Multi-
Storey Car Park, Aldershot and the acquisition of a long lease of a new 250
space car park within the Galleries redevelopment, the final terms of the
agreement be delegated to the Executive Head of Regeneration and
Property in consultation with the Major Projects and Property Portfolio
Holder.

PROGRESS UPDATE

The Council has been working proactively with Shaviram in progressing the
regeneration of The Galleries site, particularly over the last six months as
further resource has been provided by the developer to ensure effective
delivery.

To that end, Shaviram has commenced with the demolition works
associated with the bridge link above Wellington Street and a programme of
works has been agreed to commence with the demolition of The Galleries
shopping centre and, in time, the High Street multi-storey car park. A key
consideration for the Council during discussions has been the impact of
losing the MSCP, and with it parking capacity, for a period of time whilst the
new car park was being built. This could not be avoided due to issues
relating to phasing and the need to provide residential car parking aligned
to the development as well as the public car parking.

Pack Page 128



3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Heads of Terms relating to the Development Agreement and Lease
Agreement were circulated to Shaviram for consideration and response in
Autumn 2021.

In the period since, the Council was made aware of the former Conservative
Club freehold being taken to the market. Given the immediate proximity to
The Galleries site, it was considered to be in Shaviram’s interest to explore
the acquisition with the intention of it offering the potential to provide the
Council with a plot upon which a new MSCP could be provided at the
developer’s cost.

The former Conservative Club freehold presents the opportunity for
Shaviram to extract the public car parking from the envelope of The
Galleries site and prioritise the delivery of the public car park reprovision
ahead of commencing work on The Galleries site itself. It would also ensure
that the existing High Street MSCP can stay in operation up until the point
that the new MSCP has been constructed, therefore ensuring that there is
no gap in parking provision for the town.

It is considered that this proposal offers a number of advantages to the
Council when compared to the previously agreed arrangement.

Subject to Cabinet approval, Shaviram will prioritise taking forward a
planning application for the site with a target submission being Spring 2022.

RISKS AND LEGAL AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Risks

The Council has a risk register in place for the scheme and this is reviewed
regularly by the Project Office.

Legal Implications

The Council has entered into contract with Homes England in respect of
£3.4m of HIF funding aligned to the delivery of The Galleries development.
The contract sets out the milestones that the Council needs to meet in order
to secure the funding. The inability to meet these milestones would result
in the Council defaulting on its legal obligations and put at risk the funding
drawdown.

Recognising that the funding allocation runs until March 2022, the Council
has formally written to Homes England seeking to extend the milestones by
a further year to ensure sufficient time to fully utilise the allocation against
demolition and car park costs.

The Council has retained the services of Bevan Brittan to assist with
contractual matters relating to the delivery of the project.

Financial and Resource Implications

Pack Page 129



5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

All costs associated with the delivery of the project are to be underwritten
by Shaviram.

Equalities Impact Implications

There are no known specific equalities impact implications arising from this
report.

Alternative Options

The Cabinet could consider proceeding with the previously agreed position
of a new car park within the envelope of The Galleries site. However, for the
reasons set out above, it is not considered to be the best course of action.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This report provides an update on The Galleries regeneration scheme and
seeks approval, in principle, for officers to explore a land transfer for the
purposes of public car park reprovision on the site of the former
Conservative Club. This represents a departure from the previous position
where it was the intention for a new car park to be provided on a long lease
basis within The Galleries scheme associated with planning application
20/00508/FULPP.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Title Plan for High Street Multi-Storey car park
Appendix 2 — Title Plan for Former Conservative Club

CONTACT DETAILS:

Report Authors

Nick Irvine — Regeneration Service Manager
Nick.Irvine@rushmoor.gov.uk

01252 398739

Karen Edwards, Executive Director
Karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk

01252 398800

Pack Page 130


mailto:Nick.Irvine@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk

HM Land Registrg Title number HP798587 e

: Ordnance Survey map reference SU8650NW . . :
Current title plan  cim1:1250 "atte
Administrative area Hampshire : Rushmoor N =

APPENDIX 1

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100026316. You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

QvoY 18n0D

Multistorey Car Park

d Y9ed

This is agyint of the view of the title plan obtained from HM Land Registry showing the state of the title plan on 24 February 2022 at 13:44:24. This title plan shows the general
positiorfQot the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale. Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points
on the gt&und.

R

This titIe‘-’r‘Ql;\ dealt with by HM Land Registry, Weymouth Office.



Pack Page 132



HM Land Registry Title number HP806506 ‘o
: Ordnance Survey map reference SU8650NW - 8 o
Current title plan  cim1:1250 S A

Administrative area Hampshire : Rushmoor @

APPENDIX 2

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100026316. You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

60T

Library

5
§f
Snoyeg 3y

2SNOH pJoyels
371039

132t0 135

- [
———

Townsteaq

GORDON Roagy

This is a print of the view of the title plan obtained from HM Land Registry showing the state of the title plan on 20
January 2022 at 10:10:37. This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be
subject to distortions in scale. Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same

points on the ground. Pack Page 133

This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Weymouth Office.



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 5

CABINET COUNCILLOR MARTIN TENNANT
MAJOR PROJECTS AND PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO HOLDER
15 March 2022
REPORT NO. REG2203
KEY DECISION? YES

REGENERATING RUSHMOOR PROGRAMME -

FARNBOROUGH PROJECTS FUNDING REQUIREMENT

SUMMARY:

The Council has an ambitious regeneration programme with projects at different
stages including feasibility assessment, business case development and due
diligence underway. The Council’s programme office has undertaken a review of
current budget allocation against the work programme and this report seeks
Cabinet authority for the release and allocation of grant and capital funding to
enable the completion of key stages of projects relating to Farnborough Civic
Quarter and the wider town centre.

The report also provides an update on a successful One Public Estate (OPE)
funding bid.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Cabinet is recommended to agree:

1. Allocation of £103,000.00 revenue funding to the ongoing delivery of the
Leisure and Civic Hub detailed business case.

2. Allocation of £627,514.00 capital funding from the current capital
programme following the discovery of significant asbestos in the existing
leisure centre over and above that provided for in the approved demolition
budget as well as the provision of a further contingency to address any
additional asbestos finds prior to completion.

3. Thisincludes an allocation of £10,000.00 to provide additional hoarding and
anti-climb paint at the Farnborough Leisure Centre demolition site.

4. Allocation of £35,000.00 for the development of a town centre strategy for
Farnborough.

Pack Page 135



1. INTRODUCTION

1.1  This report provides an update on the funding requirement for the Council’s
Regeneration Programme. The Council has an ambitious regeneration
programme with projects at different stages including feasibility assessment,
business case development and due diligence underway. The programme has
recently been reassessed in the context of the Council’s financial position and
the Council’s programme office has undertaken a review of current budget
allocation against the work programme for the next 6 months.

1.2 Three areas of the programme have been identified as requiring additional
funding to enable robust progression to the next stage of project delivery as
follows;

. Business Case for Leisure Centre/Leisure and Civic Hub
. Leisure Centre Demolition
o Town Centre Strategy for Farnbrough

The following sections of this report set out more detail for each of these
projects

2. NEW LEISURE CENTRE/LEISURE AND CIVIC HUB

2.1  The Council has made a commitment in the Council Plan to bring forward the
development of a new leisure centre. The vision set out in the emerging Civic
Quarter Masterplan sets out the potential for the new leisure centre to be
combined with a range of public service uses including a new library and
Council office in a public and community ‘civic hub.” The Council’s current
offices would then be redeveloped for housing. Given the complexity of the
current financial position this option needs to be robustly tested against other
options including retention and refurbishment of the current Council office
building and the relocation to alternative vacant office space in the town.

2.2  This has broadened the work being undertaken to prepare the business case
for the new Leisure Centre including further soft market testing with the Leisure
Operator market and detailed work on options for acquisition and lease and
building management. A bid was made to the One Public Estate (OPE) fund to
support this work which was successful and £300,000 has now been awarded.
The additional costs to support the development of the business case (currently
estimated at £103,000) can be met from this funding with the remainder being
carried forward for the next stage of delivery.

2.3  This Business Case is expected to come to Cabinet and Council for review and
decision in late Summer 2022 at which point the preferred option can be
agreed.

2.4 A sum of £225,000 of the OPE funding is repayable upon completion of the

project and disposal of the existing Council Office site. Should the project not
go ahead then the funding will not be repayable.

Pack Page 136



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

FARNBOROUGH LEISURE CENTRE DEMOLITION

The demolition of the old Farnborough Leisure Centre commenced before
Christmas. During demolition of the existing Leisure Centre a number of
significant notifiable asbestos finds have occurred in areas of the building that
it was not possible to survey prior to commencing works. This has resulted in
the need for additional capital funding for the removal of the additional
asbestos.

Due to the scale of the demolition, it is likely that further asbestos will be
identified and therefore a project budget is sought to allow timely response to
further finds over and above the current known finds

Detailed work is underway to interrogate and approve the additional cost of
asbestos removal. To date, three of four new finds have been assessed and
costed totalling circa £145,000 which includes an estimated programme
extension of 4 weeks. These costs can mostly be met from the original budget
and contingency approved at Cabinet on the 19" October 2021, report RG2101.
However, the latest estimate for the most recent asbestos find is £407,992 with
a 14-week programme delay due to the complexity of the removal required.
Work is underway to interrogate these costs to agree a final figure, however
there is also a risk of further finds, particularly in the sports hall where demolition
has not yet commenced.

Based on current numbers and cost estimates there is a funding gap of
£477,514.00. Given the risk of further asbestos finds we request an additional
£150,000.00 contingency allocation bringing the overall budget variation to
£627,514.00 to allow the Project Team to instruct further asbestos removal and
mitigate further programme delay as required.

Demolition of the wet side of the Centre is circa 60% complete and additional
asbestos finds to date are included for in the figures outlined in this report. Most
of the rooms have now been demolished which reduces the risk of significant
additional finds.

As no demolition has taken place in the Sports hall, and this cannot commence
until the bowling green has been removed (costs for the asbestos removal in
this area are included in the figures outlined in this report) there is a risk of
further asbestos finds within concealed finishes in the Sports hall.

Pack Page 137



3.7 The table below provides a breakdown of budget requirement against the
current budget allocation:

Budget £1,339,000.00
EA fees (£38,351.00)
Project Management (£10,000.00)
Kingsmoat suspension (£7,500.00)
Service diversion and associated work (£192,091.00)
Revised contract sum 17/01/22 (£999,096.00)
Additional Asbestos cavity closer and channels - Prov. Inc 4-week delay (£116,071.00)
Contractor fee (£1,875)
Miscellaneous (£5,000.00)
Kings Moat add loss of income (£15,250.00)
Kings Moat legal fees for displaced permits (£250.00)
Additional Employers Agent fees May-August (£13,037.00)
Additional Asbestos (Bowling Area) (£407,992.00)
Additional hoarding and security measures (£10,000)

Total spend profile £1,816,514

Approved budget £1,339,000.00

Difference £477,514

Contingency £150,000.00

Additional budget requirement £627,514

3.8  There s arisk that there may also be further asbestos in the ground depending
on construction and how the site was managed at the time. We will not know
this until intrusive ground surveys have been undertaken once the main fabric
of the building has been demolished.

3.9 Since the beginning of the year there have been a number of incidents with
young people breaking into the demolition site and putting themselves at
significant risk. Although the site is hoarded and has operators or security on
site 24 hours there are areas of temporary fencing which originally were only
expected to be in place for short periods. Due to the additional asbestos, it is
now likely that the programme will be extended by up to 20 weeks. A multi-
agency meeting has considered the risk of this given the persistence of those
determined to access the site and additional measures including additional site
security, visits by community patrol officers, increased focus from CCTV,
targeted response from the police and contact with local schools have all been
put in place. However, given the level of risk those involved agree that
additional permanent hoarding should be provided alongside other deterrents
including anti-climb paint. These further costs are currently being assessed but

Pack Page 138



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

an estimated £10,000 further funding is requested to provide this further
mitigation.

TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY

In addition to the redevelopment of the Civic Quarter, the Council plan
recognises the need to progress the wider regeneration of the town centre.
Historically this has been taken forward by the private sector, but progress has
been slow, and redevelopment stalled due to the pandemic. For the Council to
consider a similar direct intervention approach to that in Aldershot it will be
important to understand what might be possible.

The first stage of this work is the development of a town centre strategy which
takes account of the post pandemic and economic position we are
experiencing. This work would look at future hard and soft uses, develop a
concept plan defining what will make Farnborough a place which will be
attractive for residents, visitors and importantly investors. The strategy will set
the scene for future delivery options, propose a phasing approach, and help
identify the type of delivery partner(s) the Council may need. Following soft
market testing with a range of providers, David Lock Associates are
recommended to be appointed to take this forward. A further £35,000 funding
is requested to fund this work.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

The Leisure & Civic detailed business case will look at a range of options for
delivering facilities in the town centre including using existing buildings for
Member decision.

Failure to remove the identified asbestos in the existing leisure centre will result
in all works stopping on the site.

The town centre strategy work will directly inform the business case for
regeneration intervention in the town centre either directly or with a
development partner or investor. Without the strategy the Council will not have
the ability to consider the options and implications before moving forward with
potential significant schemes or interventions.

CONSULTATION

In 2019 a public consultation was undertaken which identified the need to
create a community heart as a top priority for the future regeneration of
Farnborough town centre. Further aspirations focused on developing a strong
identity and sense of place for Farnborough, encourage community cohesion
and improve health and wellbeing.

During the development of the feasibility study, the project team has undertaken
consultation with internal and external stakeholders to develop and finalise the
proposed project brief. This has included a range of workshops and briefings

Pack Page 139



6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

with staff and Members including the Policy and Project Advisory Board
(PPAB).

The proposed facilities mix for the new leisure centre was developed as a result
of consultation with clubs and other users of the Farnborough Leisure Centre

The Civic Quarter Masterplan was consulted on in Autumn 2021 and a
statement of community involvement will be submitted with the Masterplan
planning application.

IMPLICATIONS

Risks

A detailed project risk register has been developed for all projects within the
programme and these are reviewed as part of the Project Team meetings.

The funding outlined to progress is at risk should the projects not go ahead.
Legal Implications

There are no known legal issues in proceeding with the recommended
approach.

Financial and Resource Implications

The additional budget for the development of the Leisure & Civic Hub detailed
business case can be funded through the successful One Public Estate bid.

It is proposed that £627,514 is allocated from the £17.980m in the Capital
Programme for the Civic Quarter redevelopment to fund the capital cost of
additional asbestos removal as part of the Leisure Centre demolition and
additional hoardings and anti-climb paint.

It is proposed that £35,000 for town centre strategy development is funded
using existing regeneration reserves or other available budget as identified by
the Executive Head of Finance.

Equalities Impact Implications

There are no known Equalities Impact Implications arising from this report.

Pack Page 140



8. CONCLUSIONS
8.1 In order to take forward these projects and continue with the delivery of the

Council's regeneration ambitions Cabinet is asked to approve the allocation of
funding as set out in the report.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Cabinet report RP2009 14™ July 2021 — Approval of Outline Business Case
Cabinet report REG2101 19" October 2021- Demolition up-date and Budget Approval

CONTACT DETAILS:
Report Author - Gemma Kirk, Interim Programme and Projects Executive

(Gemma.kirk@rushmoor.gov.uk)
Executive Director — Karen Edwards. (Karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk)

Pack Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 6

CABINET COUNCILLOR MARTIN TENNANT
15 MARCH 2021 MAJOR PROJECTS & PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO HOLDER

KEY DECISION: YES/NO REPORT NO. ED2201

URGENT REPAIRS — PARTY WALL AT NOS. 35-39 HIGH STREET, ALDERSHOT
(UPDATE)

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

Following the recent demolition activity for Union Yard, the party wall between the
Union Yard development site and 35-39 High Street, Aldershot was found to be in
need of urgent repair. An urgency decision was taken by the Executive Director in
accordance with the Council's Access to Information Procedure Rules,
Arrangements for Urgency and Exceptions Sections (1) and (3) and was noted by
the Cabinet at its meeting on 14 December. The purpose of this report is for
Cabinet to note a further Record of Executive Decision made following final cost
estimates for the works.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1  The purpose of this report is for Cabinet to note the Record of Executive
Decision in relation to urgent works required to a party wall between 35-39
High Street, Aldershot and the Union Yard development site.

2. DETAILS

2.1 A further decision has been made to enable urgent works to be undertaken to
the party wall between 35-39 High Street Aldershot. The reason for the further
decision is as a result of the total cost of the works exceeding the estimate set
out in the earlier decision. The record of Executive Decision is set out as the
Appendix to this report for noting by Cabinet.

2.2  Consultation has been carried out with the Council’s Executive Leadership
Team and relevant Portfolio Holders and the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in accordance with the Council’'s Access to Information Procedure
Rules, Arrangements for Urgency and Exceptions Sections (1) and (3)

3. Risks

3.1  While the building overall is stable there is a risk that the works in themselves
cause damage to 35-39 High Street. The statement of works sets out the best

Pack Page 143



approach to ensure this risk is minimised. The works will be insured by the
Council.

3.2  Whilst the project to get these unanticipated works undertaken has been
progressed urgently there will be a consequential delay with the Union Yard
development which incurs additional costs on the main contract. These
additional costs will be assessed and reported as part of the Union Yard
project.

4, Legal Implications

4.1  The contracts will be issued in accordance with industry standards and
procured within the Council’s procurement arrangements for an urgent
decision

5. Financial and Resource Implications

5.1 The estimated cost of all the works now proposals have been received from
contractors and evaluated by the Council’s Employers agent and/or property
team is now expected to be up to £316,500 plus VAT (Previous estimate
£200,000). The Executive Head of Finance is proposing that the works be
funded from capital receipts received during the financial year to prevent any
impact on the Council’s revenue budget and avoid the need for additional
capital borrowing. If this approach is changed then this will be reported as part
of the next budget monitoring report.

6. Equalities Impact Implications

6.1 There are no equalities impact implications as a result of this decision.

7. CONCLUSION
7.1 The works set out in the Record of Executive Decision are essential to stabilise

the wall and to enable the Union Yard development to proceed. Cabinet are
requested to note the further decision made.

CONTACT DETAILS:

Report Author — Karen Edwards, Executive Director
Karen.edwards@rushmoor.gov.uk

Pack Page 144 2



APPENDIX

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL
RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISION

Decision taken by individual Cabinet Member / Officer (delete as appropriate)

(All sections must be completed (mark “N/A” as applicable))

DECISION MAKER (Name and designation)

Karen Edwards, Executive Director

DECISION AND THE REASON(S) FOR IT

This Decision is an update on the Decision taken on 10t December 2021 and reported to Cabinet
(report ED 2102) on the urgent works required to an exposed party wall at 35-39 High Street,
Aldershot.

The purpose of this decision is to record the increased cost of the repair works and confirm the
award of the works to contractors as follows:

Internal works - Hampshire Property Services Ltd (HPS) - up to £101,000 plus VAT
Demolition, rebuild, finishing — Hill Partnerships Ltd — up to £193,000 plus VAT (12-week
programme)

Cost of urgent works £294,000 plus VAT

In addition, the repairs to the party wall have a potential impact on the main Union Yard
construction programme with a forecast maximum delay of 17 Weeks. Each week of delay on the
main contract caused by matters outside the contractor's control incurs a cost currently estimated
at £28,176 per week. There is an opportunity offered by Hill Partnerships Ltd to accelerate the final
stage of the repair works by 2-3 weeks at an additional cost of £22,500 by bringing additional
contractors on site. This additional sum has also been agreed as it reduces the potential overall
delay cost by approximately £57,432 for 2 weeks (10-week programme) or £86,148 for 3 weeks.
(9-week programme).

The total cost arising from this Decision are expected to be up to £316,500 plus VAT

All costs have been reviewed by the Council’s Employers Agent and/or internal Property Service
This decision has been shared with the Council’s Executive Leadership Team and relevant Portfolio
Holders. Councillor Mike Smith (Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee) has been advised in

accordance with the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules, Arrangements for Urgency
and Exceptions Sections (1) and (3). The Decision will be reported to Cabinet at its next meeting.

DATE DECISION TAKEN

22 February 2022

Pack Page] 145




ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
(Those examined by officers and generated by consultation, etc)

To proceed with the works and not pay the additional £22,500 to shorten the works timescale
but this was rejected as would result in a substantial risk of higher costs at the end of the Union
Yard construction period.

ANY CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS DECLARED
(conflict of interests of any executive member who is consulted by the officer which relates to the decision.
A note of dispensation should be attached).

None

Signed

(Decision Maker)

Designation ___Executive Director

Please send completed form to Chris Todd, Democratic and Customer Services

Pack Page 146



	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 ADOPTION OF BASINGSTOKE CANAL AND MANOR PARK CONSERVATION AREA CHARACTER APPRAISALS AND MANAGEMENT PLANS
	CABINET
	ADOPTION OF BASINGSTOKE CANAL AND MANOR PARK CONSERVATION AREA CHARACTER APPRAISALS AND MANAGEMENT PLANS
	INTRODUCTION
	1.1. The purpose of this report is to inform members of the comments received during the public consultation on the draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan and draft Manor Park Conservation Area Character Appr...

	AD9AB7~1.PDF
	BC CA2
	BC CA
	1. Introduction
	Overview Document
	Appraisal and Management Plan
	Sub-Character Area Appraisals

	2. An Overview of Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area
	Designation History
	Biodiversity
	Summary of key Characteristics

	3. Sub Area 1 – Old Ively Road to Eelmoor Bridge
	Area Summary
	Views
	Public Realm
	Building form and details

	4. Sub Area 2 - Eelmoor bridge to Farnborough Road Bridge
	Area Summary
	Views
	Public Realm
	Building form and details

	5. Sub Area 3 - Farnborough Road Bridge to Ash Lock
	Area Summary
	Views
	Public Realm
	Building form and details

	6. Sub Area 4 – Government Road to aqueduct over the Blackwater Valley Road
	Area Summary
	Views
	Public Realm
	Building form and details

	7. Listed Buildings
	8. Management Plan
	Introduction
	Good Stewardship
	Development Management
	Implementation and Monitoring

	Appendix A – Areas removed from Conservation Area following review
	Woodland that forms part of the Wellesley Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANG)
	MOD land to the south of the canal forming part of Travers / Gale Barracks
	Woodland to the north of Canal between the A325 Farnborough Road and Queens Avenue
	Land between the canal and Gold Lane


	Full Length - adoption
	Sub Area 1 - adoption
	Sub Area 2 - 1911 - adoption
	Sub Area 3 - 1911 - adoption
	Sub Area 4 - 1911.- adoption
	Sub Area 4 - adoption
	Sub Area 3 with local listings - adoption
	Boundary and areas removed - adoption
	Basingstoke Canal FINAL Consultation version.pdf
	Basingstoke Canal Cons Area (Draft cover)

	Basingstoke Canal FINAL Consultation version.pdf
	Consultation Draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
	Picture Pages - Area 1


	Basingstoke Canal FINAL Consultation version.pdf
	Consultation Draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
	Picture Pages - Area 2


	Basingstoke Canal FINAL Consultation version.pdf
	Consultation Draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
	Picture Pages - Area 3


	Basingstoke Canal FINAL Consultation version
	Consultation Draft Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
	Picture Pages - Area 4



	Sub Area 1 1911
	Sub Area 2
	Blank Page

	ADOPTI~4.PDF
	Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan
	Manor Park 1881 - adoption
	Manor Park 1911 - adoption
	Manor Park 1931 - adoption
	Manor Park 1961 - adoption
	Manor Park Cons Area - adoption
	Manor Park Cons Area - with listed buildings - adoption
	Manor Park showing areas removed - adoption
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park Cons Area (Draft cover)


	Manor Park Conservation Area - Text Only
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan - Final Consultation Version
	Binder2
	Photo Pages (updated)




	Manor Park Conservation Area - Text Only

	1881 base showing proposed boundary
	1911 base showing proposed boundary
	1931 base showing proposed boundary
	1961 base showing proposed boundary
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park Conservation Area - Text Only

	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan - Final Consultation Version
	Binder2
	Sub Area 1

	Binder2



	Manor Park Conservation Area - Text Only
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park FINAL Consultation version
	Manor Park Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan - Final Consultation Version
	Binder2
	Sub Area 2




	Manor Park Conservation Area - Text Only




	4 REGENERATING RUSHMOOR PROGRAMME - THE GALLERIES PROGRESS UPDATE AND NEXT STEPS
	Regenerating Rushmoor Programme - The Galleries progress update and next steps - aPP 1.pdf
	Blank Page


	5 REGENERATING RUSHMOOR PROGRAMME - FARNBOROUGH PROJECTS FUNDING REQUIREMENT
	6 URGENT REPAIRS - PARTY WALL AT NOS. 35-39 HIGH STREET, ALDERSHOT



